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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San
Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
in this report misleading.
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Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past years through the introduction of a
series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products as
well as the provision of the most professional and superior beauty
and slimming solution to our customers. The Group was listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the
first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group has nine beauty and slimming centres with three in
Hong Kong and six in Mainland China including two in Beijing,
two in Shanghai, one in Shenzhen and one in Hangzhou. All these
centers provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty and
slimming services, medical cosmetological treatments, anti-aging
treatment programs, etc.. Combining the effective treatments and
comprehensive follow up, all programmes enable customers to
achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body shape in the
healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services and received numerous
accolades during the years of which included “Body Specialist”,
“Best Label Award — Slimming” by Marie Claire Magazine, “Yahoo!
Emotive Brand Award—Beauty and Fitness Centre Category” by
YAHOQO! many times and honor to be the “Caring Company” for
five consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005 who distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai and cosmetic and skin
care products with famous brands like SK-Il and Olay in the eastern
and western part of Mainland China. With years of development,
the distribution network is well developed and with the additions of
international famous brands, the growth of turnover as well as the
number of distribution points is impressive.
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In June 2010, the Group appointed a consultant to develop the
Group’s franchise co-operation business in Mainland China.

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business and the newly franchise co-operation
business, the Group is well-equipped to provide the best-in-class
services to our customers.
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Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue and net
income

Selling and distribution
costs

General and administrative

expenses

Profit/(loss) from
operations

Finance costs

Share of profits/(losses) of
jointly controlled entities

Profit/(loss) before
taxation

Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Equity attributable

to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
=2 == —E-_F —E——F —E-TF —ZThEF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
1,141,662 1,039,785 627,537 470,725 437,916
(974,098) (861,630) (536,634) (389,006) (359,450)
167,564 178,155 90,903 81,719 78,466
4,686 6,787 1,180 2,171 1,237
(83,863) (79,062) (67,066) (61,211) (63,081)
(71,829) (69,429) (68,727) (50,957) (45,186)
16,558 36,451 (43,710) (28,278) (28,564)
(1,798) (2,008) (1,337) (1,248) (1,579)
668 (76) (483) 2,858 (3,277)
15,428 34,367 (45,530) (26,668) (33,420)
(7,870) (7,847) (2,503) (2,154) (1,039)
7,558 26,520 (48,033) (28,822) (34,459)
42,252 28,290 33,809 27,019 29,364
290,301 255,492 193,553 127,223 117,669
(162,435) (135,819) (92,829) (75,084) (88,484)
127,866 119,673 100,724 52,139 29,185
(20,837) (5,593) (23,127) (3,380) (3,563)
149,281 142,370 111,406 75,778 54,986
125,514 118,988 91,774 55,765 31,108
23,767 23,382 19,632 20,013 23,878
149,281 142,370 111,406 75,778 54,986
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FFEHRE

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2013 (the “Year Under Review”) to the shareholders of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) on behalf of the board of
directors (the “Board”).

During the Year Under Review, the global economy continued to
fluctuate under a lack of improvement in the economies of Europe
and the United States and sluggish pace of recovery. Distressed
by the uncertainties, consumer and investor confidence remained
weak and the economic prospects in the developed countries
remained gloomy. In face of low demand in its main export markets
in the United States and Europe, the government of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) has spurred domestic growth to
avoid a hard landing for its economy, leading to a mere moderate
growth in consumer spending. Albeit the challenges we faced, the
Group successfully secured satisfactory results with an increase in
turnover by 10% to HK$1,141,662,000 from HK$1,039,785,000 of
the same period last year.

During the Year Under Review, the Group strived to attain a
balance among growth, risk and return under a challenging
operating environment through following a more prudent roadmap
for the Group’s development. In respect of our core beauty and
slimming business, we sought to ride on the shifting of demand
towards high-end products and services and continued to invest
intensively in research and development of innovative and quality
beauty and slimming products and services and exploration of
latest technologies for introduction to its treatment programs,
in order to further diversify its product and service portfolio and
maintain most advanced treatment options for its customers to
choose. We have launched a number of innovative products and
treatments tailored to suit the needs of skin in different seasons
and climates which were warmly received by the market. The
Group also looked to better respond to the individual and unique
needs of our clients and extend more personalized services
through strengthening the communications with our clients. In
December 2012, we have opened our national customer service
call center in Guangzhou to step up our support service, closely
liaise with our customers, and better understand their needs
and feedbacks, with the ultimate aim of elevating the standard
of services provided and further cementing the leading position
enjoyed by Sau San Tong in the industry.
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Building on the achievement of our franchise operation business
in its first year in 2011-12, the Group has further extended its
presence and coverage in the PRC. A further 41 franchise co-
operation contracts have been signed in the Year Under Review,
adding up to over 140 franchise co-operation contracts have been
signed and over 90 franchise co-operate beauty and slimming
shops have been opened in more than 80 cities across the
nation as at the end of the Year Under Review. As anticipated
last year, these franchise co-operate beauty and slimming shops
have established a strong alliances to drive scale and introduce
new benefits for our customers. In view of the relative lack of
industry experience of some franchise co-operators, the Group
has organized and held three CEO exchange and training courses
for the CEOs of the franchise co-operate shops. These courses
has proved to significantly boost their confidence and helped to
accelerate the development and concrete the foothold of Sau San
Tong in the PRC under the franchise co-operation model. During
the Year Under Review, the franchise co-operation business has
delivered a turnover contribution of more than HK$30,000,000
and we intend to continue investing in growing the franchise
co-operation business.

During the Year Under Review, the Group entered into the arena
of ecommerce with the creation of the pioneering online beauty
and slimming service booking platform “BeautyU” in joint efforts
with an equity fund. Being the first of its kind in the PRC, BeautyU
vows to the philosophy of “promotion without hard-selling” and
provides a transparent and open booking platform. Prepayments
in large amounts are not necessary, and instead customers can
directly learn the details and comments of their desired treatment
programs and choose the services at the right price for the right
results at their own informed decision on a charge-per-use basis
through this booking platform. In the absence of hard-selling and
hidden charges, customers can enjoy our services with a peace
of mind. Given that ecommerce remains largely a virgin land for
the beauty industry when our counterparts in the industry fail to
grasp this new market direction and still adhere to the traditional
model of offline operation, BeautyU will clench this opportunity
in cultivating this virgin land as the doorway for the entry of the
beauty industry into the internet market, leading the way of online
business model for the beauty industry while creating a new
lifestyle for our consumers.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FFEHRE

During the Year Under Review, turnover of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,141,662,000, representing a mild increase
of 10% as compared to approximately HK$1,039,785,000 of
the same period last year. This was mainly attributable to the
significant increase in turnover contribution from Shanghai
Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”) amounting to
approximately HK$1,008,752,000, representing an increase of
16% from approximately HK$870,007,000 of last year. In a less
satisfactory light, gross profit dropped slightly to HK$167,564,000
as compared to HK$178,155,000 of last year, whilst profit
attributable to owners of the Company decreased to approximately
HK$6,177,000 from HK$24,126,000 of the same period last year,
which was mainly attributable to a transient shrink of the beauty
and slimming industry in Hong Kong after certain medical incidents
happened in late 2012, stirring consumer skepticism about medical
beauty and other beauty treatments in general. Another reason
for the decline in profit was increased investment in the PRC
market for the opening of a new flagship in Shanghai and the
preliminary costs put into the development of our new e-commerce
business. General and administrative expenses for the year were
approximately HK$71,829,000, comparable with approximately
HK$69,429,000 of the same period last year.

On 28 December 2012, the Group has entered into an Investment
Agreement with Merit Wise Enterprises Limited (“Merit Wise”), an
independent third party, for, amongst other things, the disposal of
20% of the share capital of Beauty University Management Limited
(“Beauty University”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
to Merit Wise in return for the injection of HK$20,000,000 as
capital contribution into Beauty University. The transaction was
completed during the Year Under Review.
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The pride, passion and commitment that Sau San Tong contributes
to the beauty industry are essential to our success. Over the years,
we have always committed to making strong progress in providing
quality products, outstanding services and making contribution
to the industry and community in which it operates. As a result,
the Group was honored by numerous accolades that attest
our position in the industry. As a responsible corporate citizen,
Sau San Tong spares no efforts in supporting different welfare
activities and encouraging its employees to participate in volunteer
services to build a harmonious community, improve the life of the
underprivileged, the elderly and children and to create a better
future. Our continuous care and support for its community was
evidenced by the honor of Sau San Tong as a “Caring Company”
for five consecutive years.

Looking ahead, the Group anticipates the global economy will
take more time to heal and the difficult business environment will
continue for some time. Nevertheless, the management believes
that there remains an abundance of opportunities within the vast
beauty and slimming industry in the PRC. In recent years, the
Chinese domestic market has an immense demand for anti-aging
items. Leveraging on the results gained by the Group throughout
our long history, our established leadership in the beauty and
slimming industry and our experience in the anti-aging business
accumulated since our commencement of the business years ago,
we will step up and increase the resource input into the migration
to the emerging anti-aging market. As such, the Group has focused
on the investment in opening our brand new flagship clubhouse
in Waitanyuan, the most premium location in Shanghai, aiming
at providing quality anti-aging consultancy services to our valued
customers. Together with another upcoming slimming and beauty
centre in Sinan Mansions in Shanghai and other existing facilities,
the Group is confident in well-equipping itself to further expand the
anti-aging business portfolio while continuing to provide high-end
sliming and beauty services. At the same time, the Group will stay
attuned to market changes while concentrating on execution of
its operating strategy and capitalizing on its solid financial position
and strong brand reputation to deliver outstanding results across a
wide range of metrics.
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On behalf of the Board, | hereby would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers, staff and business
partners for their valuable contribution and strong support to the
Group under a year of challenges. With our persistent dedication
and unswerving efforts, | am confident that the Group will sustain
stable growth in the future and achieve generous return for all
shareholders.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The world economy faced considerable challenges in the year
ended 31 March 2013 (the “Year Under Review”), given the fiscal
retrenchment in the United States and the sustained economic
turbulence in the euro area. In China, consumer spending was
tepid with continued slowdown in economic growth, and Beijing’s
launch of frugality drive and anti-extravagance campaign in
December. Facing the unfavorable environment in the industry
in which it operates, the Group has successfully leveraged on
its leading market position and broad-based clientele further
consolidated through innovative products and services to deliver
amiable performance in the Year Under Review.

2012 was a year of satisfactory performance for Sau San Tong.
A turnover amounting to approximately HK$1,141,662,000 was
recorded, representing an increase of 10% from approximately
HK$1,039,785,000 of the previous year. The increase was mainly
attributable to the remarkable growth in the distribution sales of
our Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”).
Turnover from Dong Fang increased by 16% to approximately
HK$1,008,752,000 during the Year Under Review (2012:
approximately HK$870,007,000).

Despite the challenging market conditions encountered, all our
beauty, slimming and spa centers in both Hong Kong and in the
PRC continued to record agreeable performances during the Year
Under Review. Turnover generated from all our beauty, slimming
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and spa centers amounted to approximately HK$96,681,000
(2012: approximately HK$108,386,000) comparable to last
year, whereas the franchise cooperation business made a
contribution of HK$34,986,000 to the turnover of the Group (2012:
HK$58,414,000).

Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$167,564,000 for
the Year Under Review, compared to HK$178,155,000 for the
previous year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$6,177,000, compared to HK$24,126,000 of
last year. The decreases were mainly attributable to a receding
performance of the beauty and slimming segment under a shift
of business focus to high-end products and services with a lower
margin but more rosy prospects, as well as a transient setback
in Hong Kong market during the Year Under Review. Besides,
the impact of negative factors including higher sales costs
and appreciation of Renminbi. During the Year Under Review,
administrative expenses amounted to HK$71,829,000 (2012:
approximately HK$69,429,000). Notwithstanding the increase
in turnover, administrative expenses were maintained at levels
comparable to that of the previous year.

During the Year Under Review, the Group continued to consolidate
its market leadership through introducing a number of innovative
and quality products and services, as well as the opening of official
accounts and fan pages in popular social networks such as Baidu,
Sina Weibo, Tencent Weibo and Facebook.
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Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centers

Against a background of modest expansion
in the Hong Kong economy, the retail sector
showed retarded growth during the Year
Under Review. This has compounded existing
unfavorable operating factors in Hong Kong linked to high rental

and inflation pressure. Nevertheless, beauty, slimming and spa
products and services have exhibited relatively strong attributes
and resilience against declining economy, as they have gradually
changed from being luxury to necessities for the local female
population. As income continued to rise and
lifestyle became increasingly busy, relaxing and
revitalizing beauty and slimming service and high-
end products saw steady increases in demand.
Market sophistication also favored the dominance
of the higher end market by Sau San Tong which
enjoys strong brand recognition and quality
reputation. However, at the start of migration to the
high-end market this year, the Group unavoidably
suffered from an initial set back in the segmental
results due to the lower margin of high-end
products. This was further aggravated by negative
factors such as throttling rentals and increases in

its leading market position, the C
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costs of sale.

In an effort to further strengthen

innovative beauty, slimming and anti-
aging treatments and machineries
during the Year Under Review. 4S
thermal longevity therapy is one of the highlights introduced.
It mimics the traditional Chinese cupping therapy which uses
thermal energy and negative pressure to promote localized blood
and lymph circulations, improve skin elasticity and invigorate
metabolism with the aim of body detoxification and slimming.
We also launched the “Restorative Redefining Body-shaping
Therapy” using ROBOLEX which combines four major slimming
technologies, namely multi-frequency transmission, ultra-sound,
laser and negative pressure in one to deliver enhanced slimming
and shaping results. ROBOLEX has obtained the CE certification
and can effectively help to resolve fat accumulation, edema and
slack skin issues through a painless, massage-like procedure.
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We have also pioneered the F
combination of treatment with

health foods and launched our
exclusive “Trim-me Revitalizing
Magnetotherapy” to help our
customers build attractive
silhouettes. While slimming
honey is an all-natural drink
to help the body dissolve
fat, the treatment also uses
magnetic geranium, a natural
mineral to replenish the body
with negative ions in order to
purify the blood, invigorate
body cells, boost immunity and
alleviate insomnia. Combined
with pilates, the entire body

is strengthened and toned

.

regulated breathing to achieve outstanding slimming results. Sau

through an emphasis on

both muscle building and

San Tong is committed to delivering efficient and effective beauty
and slimming treatments to allow our clients to feel refreshed and
reborn. In addition to providing top-notch beauty and slimming
products and services, the Group invests extensively in research
and development and new technologies in the drive to create and
unleash the beauty of each of our clients.

As vast swathes of the Chinese population begin to have
increasing disposable income to spend on items other than the
living essentials, the PRC beauty and slimming market continues to
be underpinned by strong demand. Unscathed by the deceleration
in economic growth and the central government’s frugality drive
that mainly focuses on government officials, China’s vast market
is supported by a significant number of female consumers who
are able to afford more expensive high-end beauty and slimming
services and demand for reliable anti-aging treatments. Given our
presence in the PRC market and solid reputation built over the
years, we have established a strong distribution and sales platform,
solid foundation and strong brand visibility in the mainland with the
establishment of deluxe beauty, slimming and spa centers. With a
bigger population moving up the economic ladder, we believe that
the beauty, slimming and anti-aging market in China will continue
to grow. Capitalizing on our established presence and reputation,
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we will continue to earnestly expand our business in the PRC cities
to achieve sustainable growth and return.

To leverage on our wealth of know-hows in the industry
accumulated over the years, and to better capitalize on its existing
resources, the Group also provides management consultation
services for the setting up of beauty, slimming and spa centers.
The management believes that the provision of consultation
services by our high caliber professionals in the management and
operation of beauty, slimming and spa centers will continue to
enjoy high demand while there is a lack of related expertise in the
PRC market.

Distribution Business in the PRC

Paralleled to the provision of slimming and beauty services, product
distribution is another core business of the Group. Dong Fang is
the biggest distributor of P&G products in East China Area, and
we are the sole distributor of SK-II, the world top class skincare
brand, in the Eastern and Western China. The Year Under Review
has marked a strong year for our product distribution segment,
with the turnover climbing to a record high of approximately
HK$1,008,752,000. Apart from SK-Il, we also distribute Olay and
various P&G personal care, cosmetic and skin care products, as
well as Gillette Men series. Also, Dong Fang is authorized by P&G
as the sole distributor to distribute its world recognized brands of
high-end prestige fragrances, including Gucci, Dolce & Gabbana,
Hugo, BOSS, Anna Sui, Dunhill, MontBlanc and ESCADA in the
PRC (excluding departmental store channel). Looking ahead, as
China continues shift a higher percentage of its GDP to high-end
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products, the management anticipates the revenues generated
from the distribution business will continue to attain new heights
and generate stable and sizeable income to the Group.

Health and Beauty Products

Being a leading beauty and slimming services provider on the
market, the Group is committed to development and introduction
of new and innovative products that cater to the needs and
demands of its customers. During the Year Under Review, the
Group has launched various products embedding an innovative
mix of ingredients and technologies. One feature product launched
is “Rebalancing Purifying Cream”. Formulated with oil absorption
factors, our “Rebalancing Purifying Cream” suppresses excessive
sebum production, minimizes the pores and replenishes the
skin with hydration it needs all day long, responding to the
needs of combination and oily skins. Another product is “Ultra
Revitalizing Eye Trio” includes two eye products created with
multiple biotechnologies and advanced active ingredients including
hyaluronic acid, hydrolyzed collagen, panthenol and vitamin
derivatives to resolve major issues in the eye area. The high
frequency massage stick coming in the trio is of unique design
and an utmost in eye care routines. Apart from numerous points
of sales in the PRC introduced by the Consultant and the already
existed 48 franchise co-operate beauty and slimming shops,
43 franchise co-operate beauty and slimming shops have been
added to our coverage in the PRC during the year, proliferating
our network to 89 cities in the nation. In the forthcoming year,
the Group will focus on launching highly specialized products to
address different skin concerns in different geographic locations,
climates and seasons. The Group is confident that the products
sales business line will become another major business stream of
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Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

The Group started to tap in the PRC market in 2004 upon
seeing the vast potential market in the PRC. Looking to capture
a sizeable market share and establish its brand presence in a
short time, we believed that the franchising co-operation model
should be the best way. However, our virgin attempt of franchise
co-operation business building on internal available resources
lagged our expectation during the first few years due to a lack of
allocated resources and expertise. Despite this initial setback, we
successfully turned it into a valuable lesson for future business
building.

Learning from our previous experience, the Group reformed the
business model of its franchise co-operation business in June
2010. Since then, this segment has been realizing outstanding
growth and exciting results. As at 31 March 2013, we have
entered into more than 140 franchise co-operation contracts and
more than 90 franchise co-operate beauty and slimming shops
have been opened in more than 80 cities across the PRC. Building
on such impressive results, the Group strives to further strengthen
this business segment through stepping up training for its team.
Three CEO exchange and training courses for the CEOs of the
franchise co-operate shops have been held during the Year Under
Review to provide insights in the philosophy and skills related to
the operation, management, services and sales, with the objective
of enhancing the operation and development of the franchise co-

operation business in the PRC.

g 7 43R ME
PIRBEBAZ8IEMT - F » AEEKH

AAEXRHRE  SEAZ

L EPEREREREM  HHUERARER
TEME  RIELRFHZIAFTE - AEEA
ELEMBEEEHRKAAEER —HETEK
AR o

HEINEE SRR

BERFEMSENEE  AEER_TTMF
Rig P e P E™E - SREREARENSH
SRLEYREAEE  BPIRENBEEE
BARRERRE - AT RENEAMNARA
HMERZLIMBA EXHE - ARRERADE
BERMBEMND  KUBRF2RABRNEHR

8o EMIBYIABYT  RASKERBEERNES
REBRARL R R Z R ER

RRBUBE 2 &R - ARER-_ZF—FF XA
HEEMBEEXZH RN - Bt - ZHE—
HHEGRAERMORKE R_T—=F=

A=+—8 " ®METLBEB140MH MBS
e CHABBOOKMBSEXRTHBENE
B R 8O A T F 5 - ENULE ARG - K&
AR S EBBNRE - M —FR

L EB DR - RACBEFEAXRMBEEIE
JERAR RN HAH I MEIIIRE - 2H

EHeE 12 REBEMEEZEIRRI
DHECPBRMBAIERT CEERER -

Annual Report 2012/13 FEH%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 45 Z#RERATF



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEsm L o

BeautyU Online Booking Platform

The first online beauty and slimming service booking platform
website in the PRC, “BeautyU”, was launched in October 2012.
BeautyU is the fruitful result of the joint initiative of Sau San Tong
and an equity fund to serve as a platform for beauty and slimming
service providers to join the platform. Also, as China has the
largest number of online consumers in the world, the Group has
embraced the “online” strategy for growing its income stream.
Revolutionizing the traditional consumption model of big lump-
sum prepayments, this new booking platform promotes self-service
booking on a charge-per-usage basis with clear charge standards
and user comments published on the website. As a pioneer of its
type, the website vows to the philosophy of “promotion without
hard-selling” which allows customers to pick the place, date, time
and service at their own decision, introducing our customers a new
lifestyle as well as leading the way of internet selling in the beauty
and slimming industry.

On 28 December 2012, Bravo Media Limited (“Bravo Media”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Beauty University
Management Limited (“Beauty University”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bravo Media and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and the Company have entered into an Investment
Agreement with Merit Wise Enterprises Limited (“Merit Wise”).
Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, amongst other things, Merit
Wise shall inject HK$20,000,000 into Beauty University and following
the making of the Investment, Beauty University shall allot () 20
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Shares to Merit Wise, which comprises 20% of the entire issued
share capital of Beauty University, and (i) 79 Shares to Bravo Media,
which comprises 79% of the entire issued share capital of Beauty
University. Details of which were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 28 December 2012. The transaction was completed
during the Year Under Review.

Outlook

2012 showed a clear divergence in situations between the
West and the East, with consumers in the United States and
Europe paring back expenditures in contrast with an increasing
proportion of China’s GDP being spent on consumer products,
in particular luxury items. Looking into the year ahead, as the
global economy is likely to remain subdued given the slow
recovery in the United States and fiscal austerity in the euro zone,
the consumer sentiment looks less than rosy and the general
prospects for the beauty and slimming industry remain uncertain.
The management intends not to overlook the possible impact of the
global macroeconomics on our industry and markets in Hong Kong
and China and proposes precautionary cost-cutting measures and
diversifying the Group’s business as an answer to these challenges.

As in recent years, China’s economy will remain a key determinant
for the prospects in Sau San Tong’s markets in Hong Kong and
the PRC. After avoiding a hard landing in the Year Under Review,
the economy in the PRC is moving from strong, unbalanced growth
to more stable and sustainable growth. On the other hand, the
government’s efforts in cracking down corruption and extravagance,
while discouraging to certain pockets of the consumption market, is
largely targeted at the government officials and have less significant
impact on the beauty and slimming industry in which we operate.
China has the largest number of online customers in the world and
the fastest-growing demand for beauty and slimming products
and services, and these two facts are now converging. In light of
this, the Group will embrace the “online” strategy, capitalize on our
pioneer “BeautyU” online platform and invest more resources in the
e-commerce business to tap deeper into this arena. Also, as China’s
traditional, well-heeled beauty and slimming service consumers
become more experienced and sophisticated, there arises a tilting
of demand towards high-end and customized personal services.
In view of this trend, the Group will continue to seek even higher
service standards through intensive investments in research
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and development, and more importantly, better response to our
customers’ needs through better communication. Customers can
either directly express opinion to centre’s staff or propose through
our new national customer service call centre at anytime. Besides,
the Group clearly understand that the coming market trend will shift
to looking for rejuvenation and longevity, so we will continue to
invest and equip ourselves and get ready to strive the leading role in
the anti-aging market.

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2013 were approximately
HK$73,546,000 compared to approximately HK$110,028,000
as at 31 March 2012. Gearing ratio of the Group was 12%
(2012: 10%), based on total of bank borrowings of approximately
HK$18,585,000 (2012: approximately HK$14,760,000) and the net
assets of approximately HK$149,281,000 (2012: approximately
HK$142,370,000). As at 31 March 2013, liability of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$183,272,000 (2012: approximately
HK$141,412,000), including account payables and other
payables of approximately HK$98,300,000 (2012: approximately
HK$59,933,000) arising mainly from the daily operations of
our subsidiary, Dong Fang, deferred income of approximately
HK$21,812,000 (2012: approximately HK$27,956,000), and bank
borrowings of approximately HK$18,585,000 (2012: approximately
HK$14,760,000) arising mainly from the trading activities of Dong
Fang. The liability is intended to be financed by internal resources
of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the Group represented by a ratio
of current assets over current liabilities was 1.79:1 (2012: 1.88:1),
reflecting the adequacy of financial resources.

Convertible Notes and Unlisted Warrants

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”) and
an ordinary resolution passed at the EGM, the Company issued a
convertible note in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to Dr.
Cheung (“Subscription Convertible Note”) on 5 November 2010.
The Subscription Convertible Note is with 2% interest rate per
annum and is due in 2 years from the date of issue and convertible
into ordinary shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
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conversion share, subject to adjustments. Up to 5 November
2012, the maturity date of the Subscription Convertible Note, the
Subscription Convertible Note was not converted. The Company
redeemed the Subscription Convertible Note on 5 November 2012.

Pursuant to the consultancy agreement entered into between the
Company and the consultant on 24 June 2010 (the “Consultancy
Agreement”), and an ordinary resolution passed at the EGM, upon
completing the requirements stated in the Consultancy Agreement,
the Company agrees to issue unlisted warrants to the consultant
for the financial years of 2011/12 and 2012/13. During the Year
Under Review, no unlisted warrants have been issued to the
consultant.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the
Group closely monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and to
ensure the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group has no
investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial products.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$149,281,000 compared to approximately
HK$142,370,000 as at 31 March 2012. There are no charges on
the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2013 and 2012.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group and the Company had
no material contingent liabilities.
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Employee Information

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 506 employees (2012:
480). During the year, the Group’s total staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$73,354,000 (2012: approximately
HK$68,251,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. As at
31 March 2013, there is an aggregate of 19,186,248 outstanding
options to subscribe for 19,186,248 shares of the Company
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 4 November
2003.

Significant Investments and Acquisitions

Saved as disclosed under the heading “BeautyU Online Booking
Platform” above, there were no significant acquisitions and
disposals of investments by the Group during the Year Under
Review.

Future Plan

Going forward, demand for beauty and slimming products and
services in Hong Kong and the PRC is likely to remain on the trend
of expansion, tracking GDP growth. In the forthcoming years, the
Group will continue to intensively invest in the development of
new treatments and products suited to the needs and preferences
of all range of clients. By keeping up its acute market sense and
prescient operating strategy while at the same time capitalizing
on our solid financial position and reputation, we will continue to
earnestly expand our business in markets where our competitive
advantages lie and capture new business opportunities to achieve
sustainable growth in both the short and long term.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley, aged 38, is the Chairman of the
Board, the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the
Company. She is also the chairman of the Company’s nomination
committee. Dr. Cheung founded the Group in 2000, and over
the years, by virtue of her over 15 years’ expertise in beauty and
slimming industry and profound understanding and unique vision
on the market, she can fully capitalize on the trends and changes
in the market and leading the Group successfully developed into a
famous and reputable brand in Greater China. Dr. Cheung holds an
honorary doctorate degree from Armstrong University, U.S.A. and
an Executive Master degree of Business Administration from Peking
University. Dr. Cheung is responsible for the overall stewardship
of the Group which includes directions and formulating strategies.
With her management style and innovative promotional strategies,
she achieved various accomplishments and leading the Group to a
new height. She also holds directorships in various subsidiaries of
the Company. Dr. Cheung is the younger sister of Mr. Cheung Ka
Heng, Frankie, an Executive Director of the Company.

Dr. Cheung is an Honorary President of the Federation of Beauty
Industry (H.K.) and she has been appointed as a member of the
Beauty Industry Training Advisory Committee of Education Bureau
— Qualifications Framework in 2006. In the past, Dr. Cheung was
awarded as one of the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs
in China” by the “Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”.
She is also one of the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the
youngest awarded entrepreneurs. Subsequently, Dr. Cheung has
been awarded as one of the “World Outstanding Chinese”.

In respect of social charity, Dr. Cheung is an Honorary Consultant
of The Against Elderly Abuse of Hong Kong. Dr. Cheung has
founded the Shirley Cheung Charity Foundation, which is granted
as an approved charitable organization. As a Chairman of the
Foundation, she leads the team to serve and feedback to the
community in every minute and every moment.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE EEN s EEAERERE

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie, aged 40, is an Executive
Director. He is responsible for the business development
and administration of the Group. He is also a member of the
Company’s nomination committee. Mr. Cheung holds a master
degree in business administration from Americus University of the
United States. Prior to joining the Group in June 2002, he was
the director of Vicorp Credit Services Limited, a company which
provides credit information, commencing from September 1999.
Mr. Cheung was previously an executive director of Chevalier
Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Exchange. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin, aged 63, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
responsible for giving advices to the board of Directors and
shareholders of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Company’s audit committee, a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee and nomination committee. Mr. Hong is
a practicing solicitor and a notary public in Hong Kong. He has
been practicing as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong for
over 35 years and is the senior partner of Messrs Lau, Chan & Ko,
Solicitors. He holds a bachelor degree in science from University
of New South Wales. Mr. Hong is an independent non-executive
director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Exchange.

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 54, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is also the
chairman of the Company’s remuneration committee, a member of
the Company’s audit committee and nomination committee. Mr. Li
is the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers
of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of the
Election Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of the
Legislative Council Election. Mr. Li is the founder and chairman of
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Exchange.
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Ms. HUI Yat Lam, aged 39, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2008. She is also a
member of the Company’s audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Ms. Hui is an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Ms. Hui has over 18 years of experience in
professional auditing, accounting and financial management.

Senior Management

Mr. TSE Ching Leung, aged 40, is the Financial Controller,
Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Tse is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial functions of the Group. He
is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tse joined the Group in February 2008 and has
accumulated over 18 years of accounting and auditing experience.
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Introduction

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term interest
of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2013, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Currently, the Company does
not have a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”), the founder of the
Group, holds both positions. The Board believes that Dr. Cheung
can guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on
pertinent issues given her solid experience and strong connection
in the beauty sector, and that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer in her provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for more effective and
efficient planning and execution of long-term business strategies.

Code provision E.1.3

According to code provision E.1.3, the notice of the annual general
meeting (“AGM”) shall have been sent to all shareholders of the
Company at least 20 clear business days before the date of the
AGM. The notice of the AGM held on 21 September 2012 had
been sent to all shareholders of the Company less than 20 clear
business days in advance. The Directors believe that this was an
exceptional incident because the Chairman is expected to have
other business commitments afterwards and the Company ensures
further compliance with code provision E.1.3.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

Board of Directors

Composition

As at 31 March 2013, the Board comprised of five Directors,
including two Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board during the
year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Dr.  Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr.  Hong Po Kui, Martin

Mr.  Li Kuo Hsing

Ms. Hui Yat Lam

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 26 to 28.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies, overall
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other material
financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual and interim accounts for approval by
the Board before publication, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
internal control systems and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole. All
Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs.

Independence

The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule
5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors a confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.

Each Independent Non-executive Directors is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his/her independence.
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Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an Executive Director, is the elder
brother of Dr. Cheung, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the Board members.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance and
discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate notices of
regular Board meetings are given to all directors, who are all given
an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for
discussion. Senior management from time to time provides to the
Directors information on activities and development of the business
of the Group. The Company Secretary takes detailed minutes
of the meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at the meetings. Both draft and final versions
of the minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments and
records, and such minutes are open for inspection with reasonable
advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board meeting,
as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should be
present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When the Board
considers any proposal or transaction in which a Director has a
conflict of interest, the Director declares his interest and abstains
from voting.
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Four meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each director at the meetings of the Board is set out
below:

R EFEHBONAEH  SEFHAE
FREHZERIIINT -

Number of meetings

attended/held  Attendance rate
Name of Directors BEHR HE T BITERAE HE=R
Executive Directors ITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) 3R EM&E+ (/) 4/4 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie RElELAE 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin FEERLE 3/4 75%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing ZEE A 3/4 75%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam R 4/4 100%
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZEREEES

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed
appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
AGM of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.
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The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Insurance

The Company arranges and reviews annually appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Dr. Cheung, assumes both positions
as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
This deviates from code provision A.2.1, which stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Board believes that Dr. Cheung, the founder of the Group,
can guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on
pertinent issues given her solid experience and strong connection
in the beauty sector, and that vesting the roles of both Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer in her provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for more effective and
efficient planning and execution of long-term business strategies.

The Board’s decisions are implemented under the leadership of the
Chairman with the involvement and support of the management of
the Group. The Board believes that the balance of authority and
division of responsibility are adequately ensured by the operations
of the Board and management which comprise experienced and
high calibre individuals.
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Board Committees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal
clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, and the Company had adopted
a revised terms of reference as of 29 March 2012 in accordance
with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and
Ms. Hui Yat Lam. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin. No member of the Audit Committee is a member of the
former or existing auditor of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems; (b) to
ensure good communications among Directors and the Company’s
auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external auditor on
an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to assist the
Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications, performance
and compensation of the independent accountant; (e) to review
quarterly, interim and annual results announcements as well as the
financial statements prior to their approval by the Board; and (f) to
provide advice on audit report, accounting policies and comments
to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and senior management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim
and annual financial statements of the Group, and was satisfied
that the accounting policies and standards of the Group complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

FR BRZESCHEEEERZHERE
CWERMAKREZFE - PHRFEMBR
= BEMAKEZ @ BRREERATNAE
REFHER - YEHEREORKE -

FR - BERZEGHABTHREHE - FKEH
FEZZEGEZ ZIBEARIIMT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REER HEBITERRE HER
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman) BEERLE(EE) 3/4 75%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing R S A 3/4 75%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam —REZT 4/4 100%
Remuneration Committee YHEES

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, and the Company
had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 29 March 2012
in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the requirements set out under Code Provision. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The Rumeneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin and Ms. Hui Yat Lam. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Li
Kuo Hsing.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management remuneration; (b) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management; and (c) to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the

remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior

management of the Company.

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the

Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings
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attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REER HiE EBITEERY HiER
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman) TREAA(FE) 1 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin FREEE 1 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam F—EZT 1 100%
Nomination Committee REZES

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the Company
had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with the Code
Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on the websites
of the Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng,
Frankie, and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam.
The Committee is chaired by Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board
composition, the appointment and re-appointment of Directors
and also succession planning for the Board, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. No change has been
proposed to the structure, size and composition.
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One meeting of the Nomination Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held  Attendance rate
Name of members REHSH HE T BITERRE HER
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) R EME (/) 1 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie wElBEEE 1 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTESE
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BEMLTA 1 100%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing e 1 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam R 1 100%
Corporate Governance Functions >R ELRAE

No corporate governance committee of the Company has been
established and the Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties including: (a) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) to review
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.
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Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2013, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance have been complied with. The
Directors believe that they have complied all applicable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable. The Directors also
ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group. As at 31 March 2013, the Directors were not aware of
any material uncertainties or events which may have a significant
impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements
on a going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal
business activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,076,000 and
fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$114,000.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The internal control system is designed to
reduce, but not eliminate, risks of failure in operational systems.
The system helps to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the
risks of different businesses and activities. Risk control limits are
established according to the appropriate authorisation hierarchy.

The internal control system comprises a well-defined organizational
structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority
to ensure effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability
of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Board convened meeting periodically to discuss
financial, operational and risk management control. During the
year ended 31 March 2013, the Board has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
at its meetings and through reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and executive management, and considered that the
internal control system and procedures of the Group, including the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programs and budget, are adequate and effective and have
complied with the provisions of the Code during the year.

Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates such
documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a timely
manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements and
information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to maintain
formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board Committee
meetings.
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Mr. Tse Ching Leung (“Mr. Tse”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company. The biographical details of Mr. Tse
are set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile.”

Mr. Tse has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by addressing
them to the principal place of business of Company in Hong
Kong at: 4/F, Sands Building, 17 Hankow Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed
“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)”
above.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and transparent
communication with all shareholders. The Company has provided
clear and full performance information of the Group to shareholders
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and through various
communication channels, including AGM and EGM, quarterly,
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Additional information of the Group is also available to shareholders
on the Company’s website at http://www.sausantong.com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which not less
than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and Directors
are available to answer questions on the Group’s business at the
meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions are always welcomed.

Constitutional Documents

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares
have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 19 November 20083.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial
statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products and sale of health, beauty and
related products. The slimming centres, which are operated under
the “Sau San Tong” brand name, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013, and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date, are
set out in the financial statements on pages 55 to 152.

Transfer of Reserves

Profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$6,177,000
(2012: profit of HK$24,126,000) has been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 60.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 12 to the financial statements on page
100.

Convertible notes

Details of the movements in convertible notes of the Group are set
out in note 23 to the financial statement on pages 118 to 119.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27(a) to the financial statements on
page 127.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman lIslands, share
premium and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2013, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$35,223,000 (2012:
HK$53,964,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013 is set out in note 11 to the financial statements on pages 97
to 99.

Share Option Information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the

movements in share options of the Company during the year are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements on pages 123 to 126.
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Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
33(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
Ms. Hui Yat Lam

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie and Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui
Yat Lam as at the date of this annual report and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 26 to 28.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
each has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing 4 November 2003 and will
continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and until
terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing served by
either party to the other provided that such notice period shall not
expire at any time during the first 12 calendar months of the term
of the appointment.

Each of these Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary and
a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the
bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial year
of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited consolidated
net profit of the Group (after taxation and non-controlling interests
but before extraordinary and exceptional items of the Group) in
respect of the financial year.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have been appointed
for a term expiring on 31 July 2012 with the term being renewed
for a further term of one year commencing from 1 August 2012.
Save for a total fee of approximately HK$130,000 for all of them
for the year ended 31 March 2013, the Independent Non-Executive
Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set
out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

EECRBEEHN

REME L RERZEEREDBIERRNRFT AR
BAKN B-TT=F+—-AOAEF/H=
FoUBREHNERRER—F  RIEREE
EA—HRABS—HHEREEDREASEBIAL
LAARLE  HAERBANBEITEREEFH
B+ EE A A EREREER

ZEPTEFEAAREMELSTF S RBISTT
AL MER AR B RER M BFE RN 2T
BESZMAAE TREBBAVMBRFREASE
7 BRI AR B AN (BRI KSR I 25 1R (B R
AHARREZFEE M R RIAE AT) 2 10% °

BYFNTESEEZEZEPER T —ZF
tA=+—BE®" ﬁﬁﬁ%@i%ﬁﬂ%%ﬂ—
F-BH_E-_FN\A-BEF BREEZ
=A==+ HLIFEXNTRERE
2 e A H#H 130,000/ T - BIUIERITE
EEEZHRINEMME -

R

AEBEENSREREZEFMDEFMES
@2ERE2HBEER KR EHNETH
MMERE °

FWNEZEEER T NFAAAZT=HAKZ
MARNAERIEAIZR LR A 5.34 £ 5.36
BRFREXAESZHRE  RZE——F=H
ZTABRAKEBESE ZEG AR
METZIEFBERANFRIIDEE AR
HIA e
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2013, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests and/or short positions which they are deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which will
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

EEvaER

EEMENARALEEMME AR LM
RAMBFEEARSEREDATEZEMEX
BHTERAREREEAER

EERFETHRAERROD ZERE
5879}

RNZZE—=F=ZA=+—H8 ARAIEEkF
EITBRABRESEZHBATIARRGHE
REEE (E&LEFRPEERG([FFRBE
& B 1) B XV EB) 2 B R ABBER% 0 ([ A5 1)
BERRSSIAE - MARIEES REEIEHE
XVEREB 7 R E DI TE MG AR E) KB A
(BEREFESMBERN 2B BIE - EHE
BRERRB ZERR THKR) + RIREFES
RERE GBI E 3521618 H 2 - BEREEIFER
FHRBIE 5.46 £ 5.67 G A QT RHE AT
EWT

RARBIRD 2R

Number of shares

RoEE
Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company’s
issued share
capital
Corporate Personal P NN
Name of directors interests interests Total 2RITRA
EEpnA AREER PN my ERZHBNEIH
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 31,332,000 40,322,700 71,654,700 28.86%
ok EHHE L (Note 1)
(Krat 1)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie — 700,000 700,000 0.28%
wRELE
Note 1: Hiat1 -

% 31,332,000 fi% f% 17 £ Biochem Investments Limited
([Biochem |)# % * Biochem B— BN HEBELZHE T
ks 2 AR A R] ° Biochem 2 2B /TR A REKRE
MmEL2EHE -

The 31,332,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited (“Biochem”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The
entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned by Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley.
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme
The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from

share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

RARBEBERND 2R

BRETE

ARBRERN 2 KB AR RRIEBRE
AERTARTEEZBEE  EFHBWT

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in
long position  the Company’s
in underlying issued
shares of the share capital
Subscription Company NG|
price per share )i N BRITRAE
Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period =1 ) HBERHH G S
] RF¥AM GEd: RBE HRZEY BAk
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$7.9226 323,124 0.13%
REMEL —TENFEAATHE 3 November 2013 7.9226 BT (Note 2)
—ZTEEAATEE (Note 2) (Hitz)
“ZE-=f+-A=H (Hit2)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$7.9226 323,124 0.13%
RREEE —TENFEAATH 3 November 2013 7.9226 BT (Note 2)
“ZTWEAATEE (Note 2) (Hitz)
—T-=Ft+-A=H (Hizt2)
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 2 March 2011 2 March 2011 — HK$0.66 2,000,000 0.81%
REELRE —Z——%=AZH 1 March 2016 0.66 /7T
“E-——%$=AZH%
—T-R"¥=HA-H
Note 1: Wit 1 -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director in a physically
settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

Note 2:

As a result of the completions of capital reorganisation and rights issue of the
Company on 2 November 2010 and 3 December 2010, the number of share
options and the subscription prices have been adjusted in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 23.03(13) of the GEM Listing Rules and the supplementary
guidance issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 5 September
2005.

REFRREGRIIME
HRANTETRZER -

Kiat2 -

HRARRIZBRAEERERS IR = —ZF+—A
“BRZZ-ZTF+_A=ZA%K  BREHE MARE
BORIFAIER ETHRAISE 23.03(13) EREBHAR S
MAERARNR -_ZEZTAFNARBEMZ @ IEIEs st
ZHREEH A -

BERERERN AR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 20183, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

BEXHHEEN RoF—=F=A=1+—
B ARBIESE  TRTHRABREZH 2B
BATBERARRREBBEE (EERES
KEEGHIFEXVER) 2 tnmd - BA TR
MIRBESF L AERDIEB2EREFEZLE
FCfit - SARIFAIFRR EHRAIFE 5.46 £5.67
PR AR EEFETR G2 REREANE
RATRBERAZ @A -« Kk~ AR HAE
MIORR - MAMERNRE MBI o

FTERRARO 2EERKXR

RZF—Z=ZF=ZA=1—0 " BARRIMAE
ERTBTRABMM - THRSEREES R
HEGPIEXVEHFE2RFEINHATHE - X
REREEXRAEEAARA D EITHRAL%
HIA Lz RBCERRERE S LE K
PIE3BIHRMEFEZ REECMIAGAR
mAEWT

Rz 5B

Number of shareholding

HREE

Number

of share

options held

Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage Pt
FTERR 5% iav Btk BREHE
Biochem Beneficial owner 31,332,000 12.62% —

EnlA A

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Beneficial owner 40,322,700 16.24% 323,124

REMEL BEmEAA
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above,
has registered an interest or short position in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25%
of the Company’s issued share as required under the GEM listing
rules throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date of this
annual report.

BREXFIEEN  R-T—=F=A=+—
B BRARREERAKETIETRAS (K
SHN EXEZEREBTHRABRRN 2t

Kokm I —8d) s BB EFRALTRARER
A HEBRDREFPECEREDIORE
BRI RE 75 M BB R P 58 336 15 T LARC % -

ESWERONES 2ER

B EX[EEREBITRABRBED 2 s fR
BI-SMEREEI  ENES  AEE 2B
R m T \BRZ F RN F AR B R
BAABRBARB 2R EFMER -
BENEITELFEN  BARR] - HEEA
A REALIME QR KR R E A R EET
VEARHFEEEEAESTAEMEAERE
RN -

BE S

ARBES TERRIEZAZHEALCE
&R BIFR AR I A B AR B AR
BF AR BT 2 EE P A s -

BE - HEFELALQF LHES

ARBRETAHBARBERNFANBE &
Elek HEARREM LEHES -

REHRARERE

BARRLHAABZEMMEETNTEARFR
Al 2 RERERAITREMAM  ARBCIRAIE
REMRAUMZVERADEFEEFREER
FRTIFEAPEFBEBARR D EITRA25%
ZRADBHIE °
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 29 to 42.

Major Events

On 28 December 2012, the Group has entered into an Investment
Agreement with Merit Wise Enterprises Limited (“Merit Wise”), an
independent third party, for, amongst other things, the disposal of
20% of the share capital of Beauty University Management Limited
(“Beauty University”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
to Merit Wise in return for the injection of HK$20,000,000 as
capital contribution into Beauty University. The transaction was
completed during the Year Under Review. Details of the transaction
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2012.

Events after the Reporting Period
There is so such event occurring after the reporting period.
Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 97.16% (2012: 97.21%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 92.57% (2012: 94.34%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 37.04% (2012: 35.45%) of the
total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$374,000 (2012: HK$292,000).

¥EER

RRABFRMZEBEEEARRANF29E
42 BBz bEERRE —HiT

FEEH

WZE——F+-A=Z+N\A KEBAE
R HE) A8 % = 77 Merit Wise Enterprises
Limited ([ Merit Wisel) HEARE 2 2 EWE
NAIEBABEBRERARA(EEBARE])20%
2 B 71 82 Merit Wise 5] 3% &% M Merit
Wise 78 [7] £ BB A 2% A 20,000,000 7% 7T 1E A&
BEARER - ZERXFEREABBEFEARTK -
FERGZHBHRARRAPA-ZT—=F
TZAZTNBZ A -

2HMERER
RS R S RS
IERFRHUER

FR - AEBEBERABRER 2RKBEEFE
MEIRBERE 2 97.16% (Z B — —4F : 97.21%) >
MEBEEPRAEEN 2REFILST%(ZF
—ZF 1 94.34%) c AEBZAREF ZHE
EHFEBEER237.04% (2T —ZF:
35.45%) °

ARREFSETABEALREARR(LE
ERA > REHEE ZRABBARRC ET
BAZ5%)NARBERAREEPHERERE

A 26 4 -
=+,
REBX

REFERFRNEL 2 &S 8 5E#374,000
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Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as
of 29 March 2012 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the
annual report. The audit committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & #% Z{Eh 3R &

,\?}

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG | KB it

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 152, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2013, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

BIEEEERERAH
(RESHSEMH L R A])
2RRRZBIRBARE

Az BN (A T RS TE[ RAFI)) E B G BN 5 65
EFI2ACHGEERERARUATNEHHE T
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BERREEARERBEESMASHEM 2
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 June 2013

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092

BPERBREBLSHMOSRM B EREE
APETTER TIE 2T ERNERBMEBTE
RS URESLETELTIF USGEAH
BRREOFAERERRL - (FHAE 2

fl::o

BERTESMETER - USRS MIERE
FEARTERBEEEFRAZIEREE - FTER
ZIEFBURNZ BRI 2 H i - B EEER
BMRFARRUFFRERME R E AR
Rtz R - FEE 2 SRR AT (R R - BT
EREERBRASAVBHAFHEEMAF
2Rz NEERE  UEETRBRRTEE
ERERF EYFEEREEBAREITEEE
BIEHER - ERTETERIGESMRA
SITHRRTEE MAER 2 GFHEFRE
BE - WHEAMBHRRZBEE T AEY
BREI

BFIEGE  RPEESEDRE 2BRERE
URERMzEZERIRHER -

=r
=

BFRA REFTEVBHREELEL  RAMK
WRAEBEMAFIRKR EAFE SREN-
T-ZF-A=1T-HZMBRR Ak &
BEEZALFEZEMNARSRE WO IR
BEB(RRGRIDZ WEREZERE

ABERETMEHAERIA
HEESEED
&5 —E—=FXA=+A8

R 895
HEFZRES P02092

Annual Report 2012/13 FE %
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 E#Z#RERA A



sy
EF=ac
SAU SAN TONG
2012
T
Note HK$’000
k=3 FET
Turnover —F 3 3 1,039,785
Cost of sales $HE A (861,630)
Gross profit EX 178,155
Other revenue H Mz 4 276
Other net income E MU AFEE 4 6,511
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SRR (79,062)
General and administrative expenses —RERATE R X, (69,429)
Profit from operations R 36,451
Finance costs BhE R AR 5(a) (2,008)
Share of profits/(losses) of jointly FEAE KRS EEEF,
controlled entities (kE518) (76)
Profit before taxation R A1 5% F 5 34,367
Income tax expense FriSRiF =2 6 (7,847)
Profit for the year FREF 26,520
Attributable to: SFER
Owners of the Company KRBEEA 9 24,126
Non-controlling interests e 2,394
Profit for the year FREF 26,520
HK cents
BN
Earnings per share SRER
Basic and diluted EARREE 10 9.72
The notes on pages 63 to 152 form part of the consolidated EE3BEEFE12 B 7ML EHEAMBHRRER
financial statements. Z— 83 e
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Profit for the year FRER

Other comprehensive income for the year: S REMEEUE :

Exchange differences on translation of financial Z G5\ B A T 7 B &R AT E
statements of overseas subsidiaries, net of nil A ZENH =5 - ERHIE 2 F5E

tax

Total comprehensive income for the year HRZEWHEAE

Attributable to: HER
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE Z DN
Non-controlling interests JEPERR fE

Total comprehensive income for the year HRAZEWHEAE

The notes on pages 63 to 152 form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

F63EEFE 152 8 Z M sE ot
Z—E1p e

2012

HK$’000
FET

26,520

2,496

29,016

25,266
3,750

29,016

FREPBWEK
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SAU SAN TONG

CIAL POSITION #&

2012
—E——F
Note HK$’000
k2 FEIT
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - MR KRR 12 23,001
Intangible assets mEEE 13 —
Goodwill (SRS 14 250
Interests in jointly controlled entities R ELREEHIE BE 2 R sk 16 5,039
28,290
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 17 12,795
Trade receivables U E 55508 18 90,732
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIA - R kA
receivables b JE Uk K08 18 32,134
Amounts due from related parties FEH&EEJ@/\i 7eL] 19 9,803
Current tax recoverable Al e BRRR TR 24(a) —
Cash and cash equivalents HehReFED 110,028
255,492
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans IRITER 20 14,760
Trade payables FEE 5508 21 33,628
Other payables and accrued charges — Effl B FUE N fERT & 21 26,305
Amount due to a director B —REERIE 22 273
Amounts due to jointly controlled FEAT KR H) BB FRIB
entities 16 3,590
Amounts due to related parties JEfTRE:E A L£3IE 19 6,463
Deferred income TEIEUA 27,956
Convertible notes Al AR IR 23 20,168
Current tax payable FEf & BARLIE 24(a) 2,676
135,819
Net current assets REEEFE 119,673
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERARBERS 147,963
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Other long-term liability HEMmRHAAE 32 —
Deferred tax liabilities R ITBEEE 24(b) 5,593
5,593
NET ASSETS EETRE 142,370
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERXK#E
Share capital (&N
Reserves G

Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company

AR NEEHEDRAER

Non-controlling interests IR
TOTAL EQUITY T MEEE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

June 2013.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley

[
Director

EE

The notes on pages 63 to 152 form part of the consolidated

Note
k=3

27

Exg
SUE:

2012

HK$’000
FET

2,483
116,505

118,988
23,382

142,370

RZTE—=FNAZ T BRERER

Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

REE
Director

EF

FE3AEF 162 H Z M Fira M H®wK

financial statements.

Z—8btn o
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Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director
Convertible notes

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Other long-term liability

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Bk &
Note
Kzt
ERBEE
KRB AR ZRE 15
REBEE
[ NG E ¢ 15
FBAFIE -~ e RHEMER
IR 18
HehReEEY
nEBEE
A EEPNGIE ¢ 15
Hab I sRIBE R EET B R 21
B —REEFNIE 20
Al AR IR 23
REEEFRE
EEHABERABERS
kREBAE
HEmREEE 32
BEEFH
ERR#E 27
f& A
i
A

2012
—E-—F
HK$’000
FHET

55,760

178
35,740

91,678
1,797
1,159

20,168

23,124

68,554

68,558

68,558

2,483
66,075

68,558

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 FEeN _TE—=F At NBHEREE
June 2013. Fi) 2% o

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

REM REE
Director Director
EEa EE=

The notes on pages 63 to 152 form part of the consolidated % 63 B EF 162 A Z M il F4R A M A MK
financial statements. Z—EBA o
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Attributable to owners of the Company

ROTEEARLE
Share- The PRC
based Convertible  statutory Non-
Share  Share  Merger Exchange payment  notes  suplus  Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  reseve  reSeve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reseve  losses Total interests equity
B TER  pEER HER

BA BBEE SHEE ENRE NVBE GHGE ENRE AR EMER ot BR  dmeg
Note HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO0  AKSUCD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS000
#it TR T 7B TEr AT TEr TEr TRt it 7Bt TEr A

At1 April 2011 H-§--EmR-A 248 16002 8% 553 9337 1,315 1,74 - (807 9tTid 19632 111406
Changes inequityfor ~ =E-2%2
0 L Ef
Proft forthe year Eff - - - - - - - - WIB 216 23U %5
Ober comprehensive 3 ENE
income - - - 1,140 - - - - - 1,140 136 24%
Totd comprehensive ioome. EA2EAEEE
for the year - - - 1,140 - - - - 1% 2526 3750 29016
Equiy-setted share-based R ERA 3
fransactions %4 - - - -1 - - - - 1M -1
Cancelaton of share options & & E - - - - - - - 49 - - -
Appropriationto e PRC B REET
satvoy suplisresere BEEE - - - - - - o - - - -
At 31 March 2012 Hg-zf
Zh=t-8 2488 160072 (3637) 6673 1079 1315 2,668 - 138 11898 23382 142310
At 1 April 2012 N-E-CE
BA-8 248 160072 Q6% 6673 1079 1,315 2,668 - 6136 118988 23382 142310

Changes inequiyfor ~ ZE-ZF2
s L iR

Proft for the year g - - - - - - - -8B B 758
Oercomprehensive ~ Ef3ENE

income - - - 31 - - - - - k] 00 571
Tota comprehensive ncome EAZEN LS

for the year - - - 301 - - - - 6177 6478 1,651 8129
Cencelaton of share options FF4ERE - - - - 64 - - - B4 - - -
Redemption of convertble  EETAKESE

notes 2 - - - - - 13 - - 1316 - - -
Aopropriation to e PRC - BT RELZ T BARE

statutory surplus resenve - - - - - - 1,7% - [179% - - -
Partdl disposal of equity ~ HEFFRHELT

ierestsnasubsiday  2HE b - - - - - - - 164% - 16492 3508 20,000
Issue of witen put option - B EmAAHE kY - - - - - - T G - (64
Diidends padtonon- i P RER 28

controling inferests - - - - - - - - - - Wy
At 31 March 2013 H-g-zf

ZHzt-8 248 16002 3637) 6974 10732 - 4463 8 (@662 18514 28767 149281

The notes on pages 63 to 152 form part of the consolidated FOE3EEF 1525 7T NI EGEASBRRE
financial statements. 7=
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #8RERE R

For the year ended 31 March 20183 BE T —=F=A=1+—HIEFE A i,
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7T251) |Z %’ =

2013 2012
—E—=fF —F—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HteE FET FET
Operating activities ReEEE
Profit before taxation BR A B A 15,428 34,367
Adjustments for: AT AR
— Interest income — FEWA 4 (257) (246)
— Net (gain)/loss on disposal of — HEWE #BERERHEZ
property, plant and equipment (Wzx),/ B BFEE 4 (127) 24
— Reversal of impairment loss on — RUE SRIBRIERE
trade receivables B o) 4 = (117)
— Finance costs — BERKR 5(a) 1,798 2,008
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B G EE 5(c) 686 —
— Depreciation of property, plant and — — 4% - #E MR EITE
equipment 5(c) 9,037 9,226
— Equity-settled share-based payment — #z&EERND N2 FHX
expenses 5(c) - 1,948
— Impairment losses on trade and — EUE 5 FIA R H A FE W IR
other receivables B B 1R 5(c) 370 9
— Write-off of other receivables — H iU R 5(c) = 197
— Share of (profits)/losses of jointly — FERERESEECER),
controlled entities &8 (668) 76
— Net foreign exchange loss — &R EEFE 198 1,128
Operating profit before changes in & E&E&S BRI~
working capital mERR 26,465 48,620
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEM), (374) 1,761
Increase in trade receivables FEUR & 5 5 IEIE N (41,481) (20,044)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FE{IFIE - e & E M EL
other receivables FRIEIE AN (20,240) (9,824)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due JEU B A 5108
from related parties E, () 525 (693)
Increase in trade payables FERTE 5 5RIBE N 19,299 3,060
Increase in other payables and accrued Bt f& <t 7018 K fE 51 & A
charges o 7,173 9,423
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income  iEIEUW A CGRIA>), /42 0 (6,144) 3,804
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to  JE{T L [F) 12 5| E 82 7B
jointly controlled entities CRA) /1 hn (3,571) 594
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to  JEfTEEEA LFB R L),
related parties 0 (5,071) 370
Cash (used in)/generated from (AR, /RELEEB RS
operations (23,419) 37,071
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BEfRBEEEMSR (10,243) (4,332)
Interest received [ RSN 257 246
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR) /REEETEHZ
operating activities RE&FE (83,405) 32,985

Annual Report 2012/13 £E %



Investing activities

Net cash inflow on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for the purchase of intangible
assets

Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans
Proceeds from partial disposal of
equity interests in a subsidiary
Advances from/(repayment to) a

director
Repayment of bank loans
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests
Interest on bank loans paid
Interest on convertible notes paid

Net cash generated from financing
activities

(Decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 April

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 March

Major non-cash transactions:

REED
WHREHIE AR 2 RERAFHE

HEME - BBERRBZAE

R

BEME  #EMkRBIER

BEEVEE MK

RARBREEFH < REFH
BMEED

¥IRRITERZ PAIFFIA
HEMB AR SOREL
PSR I8
REEEZBR/
(BRTES)
EERITERK

ST TR R 2 BB

ERRITERME
EXNEIEI eSS,

REMEFH RS
FH

RERREEEY
(H4), /12

RUA-BZREREE
ZEY

ExgnovE

R=ZA=+—-HZRER
RE%EY

As mentioned in note 23, the proceeds on redemption of
convertible note issued with a principal amount of HK$20,000,000
at maturity were dealt with in the Company’s current account with

a director.

Certain additions to property, plant and equipment amounting to
HK$2,397,000 not yet settled at 31 March 2011 were paid during

year ended 31 March 2012.

The notes on pages 63 to 152 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hret FET THET
31 1,428 —
836 88
(14,096) (5,755)
(9,072) —
(20,904) (5,667)
49,261 29,230
32 20,000 —
M (205)
(45,567) (23,140)
(4,774) —
(1,166) (982)
(400) —
17,395 4,903
(36,914) 32,221
110,028 76,386
432 1,421
73,546 110,028
BEAFRERS :
PANH E23 T C MORKEMAKRNSEE
20,000,000 8 7T 2 B 3 {7 A AR R IR 2 FT S 3K
HEORAARBRERZ ERENGE -
W_ZT——G=A=-F+-—AMKBEMEZ
23970008 L2 ETYR Bz RBEAE
ERBE-Z——F=-A=+—HILFEFE-
£63EF 152 A 2 M ELRE M BH]RE
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Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands and its shares have
been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and 4th Floor, Sands Building,
17 Hankow Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
respectively.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in
jointly controlled entities.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&

sed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A 3 BAN - ¥ IAETLIIR)

S

N

pmaRHE A

EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

NAEEH

EFEERERARATRAATD DR -F
E_FRA-T - HARBEREHEER
F2R2BRADE(—NAN—FED = - B4R
BREFT)NRERESEMRLAERR
ERRAR - MERNE-ZT=F1+—H
THhEEREBBAXSMARAR (K
R DAIER(TRIZEMR]) £

RRARIARSHSRAAZE  AaMER
N FEEEE MBS RIGLH Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &
EBNERDBEOBEI7THIE KNES
=

EFEGBR
(a) HhHIEH

BHE_Z-—=F=ZRA=+—BL#F
BEZHEEMBBRREEART LA
MEB AR (R ARE]) RAKE
RERESERZ

AR MBBRERDREMBERE
BB EEN (BB B REE
Al HREBEREEEMAE
(IBEEETMAE )EM 2B E
MERERMBREER FEG
AEA(TEEGT R R2E)
AR ARG RRIREE QB RD
ZEBERERE - HEMBHIERT
A B 22 P A AR B 25 B AR R
(TBIZER EmARA ) 2 8 A EE &
Xo
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. The
adoption of these amendments to HKFRSs did not
result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies applied in these financial statements for the
years presented.

The Group has not applied any new or revised HKFRS
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(see note 35).

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

2 FESTHBE®#E)

(a)

(b)

EHIREE)

BEGMAGERME TRAE
BEARARZ NG IR BERER
ZEEBUBREED - ROZEFE
B E R 2 (BT AN & P
BIFE LS HRRMERZ
AEBEETBRBERNERES -

AR BN A G T HRE I e A
R AR Z #R] B RT TR
HEA(RHMEESS)

AEERAZEBETERRIME
E NN

FEMBBRRZEHERE

MAEGEEMBBRRBRAZFER
BRI ARELE

RETAEAYBREENZEE
MBHRRFEEEEREFEDAE &
R - M FHE - AE kR
REYERRZERAREE AR
RPARRASZ2RERE - ZEH
AAREERRIREBELRNE
TRBATHEERGEZZHEM
AERERMIEL - HERBERY
BEACHEMKBET R SBHZEE
RABEZREEFEDL 82 2%
BERGERAEEZFMET TR -
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on these
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 34.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

BB TTEIR)

S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&#&

d in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 3 BA4h -

S

N

pmaRHE A

EF=g

SAU S

2 FESTHEHER®

(b)

(c)

REMBBRRZEREREE)

B RAAABRREFER - HE
HAFHERTE R B MRE - AIE
Rl RERR - RIERT R ER
B e BZHAM - RIPMER] 2 B I
Hi& HERER

ERERNERYZEHFREVBMmE
BEAFE BB BEREERK
FTiEH 2 #I8 AR TBABAR &7k
TR 2 (A ET P MY EE 34 Fmadt o

ME QR RIFERERS

MEBARAXAEEZES 2 ERE
EAREBREFNREBCMBTR
REBRAREE G Em - AlfF
FEVETIRE o REARIE GRS - IREFA]
TEZEEREEGHEEN

o

R—HENBRRZIREBFAZE
BARERAFT ARG BERE
N BEEEFEKRLEEARL &
BARREZ GBS ANEE
NRARBZRPAESL 2 EMARE
REN REHEGAVHBRRE2
EHEH EEARARZRFME
A2 R S 3R S 1R 1R R B 3R M 5 AR
Rz 77 R - ERRN Y EER
BRAEREBERBEZER

AN TONG
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the owners
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
or loss for the year between non-controlling interests
and the owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

2 FESTHBE®#E)

(c)

MEARRIFERER(EF)

FEBRERIELIFR AR R EE L
REEEZHBARRE  MAK
B EL N RZE S A AR
FEERREIMER - B AR EEE
IRERDAANAERABBETEE
ZENEE EEBEHMS
AEEMEERE QA FEIIRBEG
B B8 2 m) 2 AT 3B Bl % A E R L B
AHE IR -

JEIE AR E S N AR A B IS AR R R 2
mIETES  BARREES AEMN
EEOHAZY AEBEERNET

ZHREBESERARERREE
2 H R ER R ATIVEIFE B M 2 E A
RAEBHBAZERFERNBRBER
FHENEHEBRAR IR -

Y RAEN R AEENE
“TZ%”“@E&@W%%EX
5 GBS HIERERNE
72 PR 2 A 1T 8 B DA IR R AR R O A
o2y BEFHHBLETHE
MR IR T HERR ©

ARBPBARAKRARMBERE Z
BRE TR AR BRI (R M &

2(i)) FIBR -
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
or Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control
over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(e) and (i)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity.

BB TTEIR)

ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&

ssed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f& 278 R4} -

S

mBBEmE ()

S

EE=g=

SAU SAN TONG

2 FESHBE#®)

(d)

HEZHER

S F ) B R R AR AN S AR A
TEEM ST A NSRS
K MZb mgmﬁm$%@y

,‘¢7H5E§bﬂfﬁ_ R iI% -

RERZEGIERE 2 RE THiRERE
RAZEMBmEK - MEBEERE
WESREAYER - WHAEEG
WIRE QT 2 A RIE EFENK
BHEHATERKREXRAN(NE)HE
M BEEL AL B ZRE
MAEEEERIZRE R ANEETF
BHRWERE 2 E8) AREZEE
Bz AREBEBIELAZ(RM
FE2(e) & (i) o fErJ U & B HARR K
RZZFE - AEBEGWRERFA
W BB R TR A R F AT AR
BEEBRGERRERER  MAE
EELEBEEAT CWEERRBIEE
2 EKENELGE 2 ER TR
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A EELBREBERKFE
HlER s MASEZ#S
HMET  UWRIEEIE-TEBHE -
HEMAREDRRARZEHERE
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AR TE S TE B SRR AN AR BIBR
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BRE B ZARERAES -

Annual Report 2012/13 FE %
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 Z#ZRERAF



2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entities
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2(i)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

2 FESTHBE®#E)

HEZHER(E)

(d)

(e)

AEBEEARZEHNERETIS
PREL 2 RERBaEUARKERH
FIE B 88 2 s A RIEE - MW
AREREREHERBRAEEE
ERERRIN  EZBERT @ ZF
B R RN MR FERR o

[k
BEREATME ZER

() FEEAEZRFE R
BRI AEERERSER
AEBRERREBETAHE
(= AN P L

() RBREE T R B AR T
BREERAEL ATHE -

)R () - BIZ B AN BB 28
DS EEE I o

BRI R AR EE BT
EGAHEENEERIRE
SHReELBENSIREEEENMA
BI(TE BB & 1 & OF B 107 [B) i e wp &
@) WASFERERR (R
2(i)(ii)) °

REALERSELEME - BA
BEEREZEASENFELEZ
BaREREA -
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less otherwise indicated) (b 5B A5 -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (except for
construction in progress), less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

10.0% — 20.0%
10.0% — 33.3%
10.0% — 20.0%

Machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Office and computer
equipment

Leasehold improvements 20.0% or over the
remaining terms of leases
(whichever is shorter)

Motor vehicles 20.0% — 30.0%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the estimated
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

BB TTEIR)
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N

smaEmE (A

EF=g
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2 FESIHBE#E
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M3 - MEBRRRIE

W - Hes RRERB TR
ZETITE MopE R R (R B R 2()(i)
IR °

FEIRME - #BELREEEB (E
BITRERIN 2GR A ERFHZE
AROB LA TN BI) R SR AMOREL BCASRL A & T

FlrEE(IMAE)HE

= 10.0% — 20.0%
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BEZAERFHRERSKEERN
B)HesFEM -

M - IR R EREIE B R mEES
ERESXZRE  AEFHERR
FRIEFHEBRERAEZHE
WA BRESHEEAEERA
TR o

Annual Report 2012/13 FE %
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 E#ZRERA T



2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, that are acquired
by the Group and have finite useful lives are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

(i)

(ii)

(M

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities recognised using the equity
method (see note 2(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(i)(ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(i)(ii).
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

— For trade and other current receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(if)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets; and

— goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the

recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

g Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3B = #A5) -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(M

(ii)

0

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

U]

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number
of shares that would be issued on conversion and the
value of the consideration that would be received at
that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in
profit or loss on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The equity
component is recognised in the convertible notes
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

o

(m)

(n)

(o)

Convertible notes (Continued)

If the note is converted, the convertible notes reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the
convertible notes reserve is released directly to
accumulated losses.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and deposits with banks that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

BB TTEIR)

in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 585 »

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(P)

(i)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in The People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the government
in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute, based
on a certain percentage of payroll, to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as incurred except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories at the end of the reporting
period.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(P)

(if)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share-based payment reserve within equity
(see note 2(q)).

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the Black
Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

BB TTEIR)

S

N

smaEmE (A

EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

2 FESIHBE#E

()

FrEs

FRMEHEEE RHIALRER
HEERARZES - EHIHER
BEXERBEERABZEHNER
FERR - M fi B0 L b 22 T W 25 T W2
SEERNRSRERZEBER R
EZBERLT  BEARED IR EAM
PENEHE RN EDRER o

4 HI B AR R 4 79 R B A IR
R 2 I D MR AT OB
52 B E E 2 AR A BUE -
R BB 6 B 2 JB 4 BB A 2 4T
% -

EREMAEEENRBETID B A AN
MRERNEREHEESE  ARE
BEREMBHRERR2EERAR
RHERANECZREZE - RIT
MEEENBARPBRAEBELKR
BRARARRESL

Annual Report 2012/13 FE %
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 E#ZRERA T



2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

BB TTEIR)

Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 58 7N -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic and skin
care products and the sale of health, beauty and related
products is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised in profit or loss in proportion
to the stage of completion of the service contract.
Revenue is also recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the deferred income upon expiry of the service contract.

Franchise fees income

Franchise fees income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised when services
are rendered.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired
before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of
the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantive period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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3 Turnover 3

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty and
slimming services, provision of franchise services and sale of
health, beauty and related products.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or
other sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty
and slimming services, net of discounts and franchise fees
income. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care 7 S5 E (L R #EE

products Em
Provision of beauty and slimming services 12 #tEA M4 1R
Provision of franchise services IREMB A ER
Sale of health, beauty and related HERRE - ZEARIEH
products Em

LXK

AEEZ EBXBR/DHBEE KR EE
o RHER MAIRRTS  RM R
BREERR  XBARBRER °

BEBEATPRHEZERZERERE

I RE - BERSEMBER - LRk

RERHEED AR IRG Z RIS WA E

FMRMBAEBRA - FR - REERE
R BT BB SRR T

2012
HK$’000

FET

870,007
108,386
12,208
49,184

1,039,785
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4 Other revenue and net income 4 HiWBIRWAFEEE
2012
—E—CF
HK$’000
FET
Other revenue Hibus
Management fee income BEEBWA —
Interest income FEHA 246
Others Hih 30
276
Other net income HttW A F58
Subsidy income from the PRC government A B B i # B A 1,279
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE -« WIS REE WS
plant and equipment (fF518) 58 (24)
Net foreign exchange loss ME H S8 F R (162)
Over-provision of operating lease rentals  BEFERKEHERLBE
in respect of prior years e 5,024
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEWE 5508 2 B EE 18
receivables (note 18(b)) B ml (Bt 18(b)) 17
Others Hb 277
6,511
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5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging:

(a) Finance costs:

Interest on bank loans
Interest on convertible notes

(b) Other items:

Staff costs

Cost of inventories sold and services
provided*

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses for consultants and
suppliers (note 26)

Provision for impairment losses on
— trade receivables
— other receivables

Write-off of other receivables

Operating lease rentals: minimum lease

5  BR®BiA =R

BB AT S A EHIRR T 5% IR ¢

(@) BAERA :

=

RITEFF S
QE:JEs )]

HIER -

BIMA
BEFERBREREZ
KA *

% BUAD BA
mIEERE

M - MERREITE

FLEARE R R Z
BRIXN 22BN S
P (K1 26)

BEEERE
— EWE HFHR
— HA R

HLfth JE SR TR L 8

REHEES - RIEEN

payments e
— property and display location rentals — VMEEKETUENRS
— other equipment — Hitz&

* Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes *

HK$1,806,000 (2012: HK$1,809,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of

expenses.

2012
—E—-—%F
HK$’000
FET

982
1,026

2,008

68,251

861,630

1,086

9,226

1,948

19,275
58

EEFERDREBREZKAREEBRE
TARARITE 21,806,000 (—F——
£ 11,809,000 7T) * Z e BN ESIER
T HRIET A _ESUBN #5E 2 AHR A -
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 585 »
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Income tax in the consolidated income 6 HERBRAZFEH
statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) #REWETRAZIMIERE :
represents:
2013 2012
—EB—=F —EFE—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax EH#HE — hBESEMEH
Provision for the year (note 24(a)) FNEE (N E24(a) 9,104 6,396
Deferred tax LR IE
(Reversal)/origination of temporary (@), ELELGH
differences (note 24(b)(i) ER(WE24(0)0)) (1,234) 1,451
Income tax expense FriSHiF &2 7,870 7,847
(i) ~ No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made () WMEBFEHMS  ARARE

(i

for 2013 (2012: HKS$NIl) as the companies in the
Group either have sustained tax losses or have
no assessable profits for Hong Kong Profits Tax
purposes. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries
is charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation ruling in relevant tax countries.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates
of 5% or 10% upon the distribution of such profits
to foreign investors or companies incorporated
in Hong Kong or for other foreign investors,
respectively. Pursuant to the grandfathering
arrangements of the PRC tax law, dividends
receivable by the Group from PRC subsidiaries
in respect of the undistributed profits derived
prior to 31 December 2007 are exempt from the
withholding income tax.

BB QR B S SIHERIE
BIESERR RN &R
ZE=FEHBEBREBE
HW(ZE——F :TEL) - 8
HINBT EE A ) 2 BEIB T iR 4B A B
RBITZEE BB R -

(i) WREFBEBE BZTTNF
—A—BRZAEEFRANWEB
RAZEF - HARRAINEZRE
EHEREDAFEMKILZ AR
Huo IR EE D IRZS =
B 9 RI1% 5% 3% 10% 85 41 T8
HEAEH - BEBERETE 2B
BEHZH AEERKERE
ZHBARR - EEL+FE+—
A=+—BZazAxDEEF
Bl zKRE  REBEHNME
i o
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6 Income tax in the consolidated income 6 HmEWBERAZFEBHR =)

statement (Continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a)
represents: (Continued)

(if) (Continued)

At 31 March 20183, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in respect of tax that would be
payable on the unremitted profits of the PRC
subsidiaries derived since 1 January 2008 as the
Company is in a position to control the dividend
policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no distribution
of such profits is expected to be declared from the
PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before taxation BR B A A
Less: Share of profits/(losses) of jointly DR TEE R HIEE
controlled entities m i, (ER)

Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRAZATA Az BEmAIE -
calculated at the rates applicable to ZEAREEER
profits in the countries concerned BN BERGTE

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T—J?Dﬁfjfﬁaﬂi,z%ﬁﬁ%%;

Tax effect of non-taxable income BEFRRWAZ RIEHE

Tax effect of temporary differences not REREREE
recognised M e

Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRBABIBEE
recognised Mg E

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BABARERTIESEZ
previously not recognised MBTE

Others Hh

Actual tax expense ERBIERSY

FRWEARRNZHIAE - (B)

Gy (4#)

WZE—=%F=RA=+—8"
B AN A B Bk 122 il o B S
a2 IR BBUR K T8 A R B B B
REIRAITBRERTE 5 KA
B ERTEMNERARE =
ZEN\E—A-HUEZKE
HH s 1 A 2 B TE e sR AT (T3
ERIEA S -

et EBRaRREstEre
a2 HER ¢

2012
—E—CfF
HK$’000
FET
34,367
(76)

34,443

9,393
1,889
(124)
908
509

(4,992)
264

7,847

V8| Annual Report 2012/13 FERE
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 E#ZREMR QA



STATEMENTS &4

TLEIR)

S

sBERNE (NS

EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of EBEEEQNTEMNE161 EMEREEZ
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: EEMeT -
Salaries, allowances Retirement scheme
Directors’ fees and benefits in kind contributions Total
Eshg 4 2EHRENFS B EME £

2012
E_—

S

HK$ 000
TAT

Executive directors HEs
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley FEREL
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie FelELt

Independent non-executive directors BIkiH17TES

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing ZEALH
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin FEWRE
Ms. Hui Yat Lam FoERT

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2012: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other four (2012: four) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments FekHEAMmBME
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH R

2012 2012 2012
ZE-C it S B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000

iz i

RE#HAL

hEEmRFALTH  —H(ZE—=
—R)ABEZ A FBEBENKE
7o BHNHB(ZE—ZF : IH)ATZ
BlesammT -

2012

HK$'000
TAET

5,038
48

5,086
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10

Individuals with highest emoluments
(Continued)

The emoluments of the four (2012: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

8 EeEHAL@

ME(ZFE——F  OR)KSFHFA LM
TEBN TR :

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—4F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AZ A&
HKS$Nil — HK$1,000,000 T ITE 1,000,000 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 87T £ 1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 702 2,500,000 % 7T - 1
Profit attributable to owners of the 9 ZXABEEAEMLER
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the RRREB ANELEGE BTN B2EERER
Company includes a loss of approximately HK$20,120,000 A B 15 3R 3% B2 1 2 B9 #8 49 20,120,000 74
(2012: HK$1,680,000) which has been dealt with in the JL(ZZF—=4% : 1,680,000/87L) °
financial statements of the Company.
Earnings per share 10 SRER

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$6,177,000 (2012: HK$24,126,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of approximately
248,294,000 shares (2012: 248,294,000 shares) in issue
during the year.

The diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2013 and 2012 is the same as the basic earnings per share
as the assumed exercise of the outstanding share options
and convertible notes has anti-dilutive effect.

BREARFDIZANGIHEE ARG
s A 496,177,0008 (= & — = F ¢
24,126,000 7T) R FRNEHETERRKR 2
DNHE 15 49 248,294,000 % (=T — —
4 1 248,294,000 ) FHHE o

RN RRITEARITEBBE R AR ERE
EARBERE BHBE_T—=Fk_
E-_F-A=t+-RULFEZEREE
BN ESRERRNER -
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11 Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s financial information mainly from business
lines prospective. Accordingly, the Group’s operating
segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products

(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv)  Sale of health, beauty and related products

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of reportable
segment results. This measurement basis excludes certain
other revenue, other net income, finance costs, share of
results of jointly controlled entities and unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant and
equipment and other assets that are managed on a central
basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities that are
managed on a central basis.

NSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

BB TTEIR)
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S

smaEmE (A

N

EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

o EHE

EEECRBENTEFERNM AL R
HRE 2 REBEERLLENE - PITESE
EREXBRAEERHNAKE ZHBER -
At - "EBZELENER -

() PDHEESHEESER
(i) REEDKEERE

(i) MBAEEEK(BEMMNBAIELHE
HEREE  XRRHMBBEER)

(v) $HERRE XARERES

HITESRA 2R BEEEETRLE
DEZRE - FIEEETBRETEMI
@ HAACEER - BEKA - BEHF
2HEREEMRDEMS

DHREETIBETERETYE BEER
whEMEFERCEE - DRBEEXR
TEEEHMEHAE  ETHBRAER
Hip Sk BBz BfE -
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11 Segment reporting (Continued)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s Executive Directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the year is set out below.

Distribution sale of cosmetic  Provision of beauty and

and skin care products slimming services
ARFEMAREAER  REZARMERE

11 2 ERKRE#E)
@ PBEE SEREE

FRRAREBERTERREIED B
BRAEMFEEFZZAKER 2
BBz BEREIIIT

Sale of health, beauty and

related products Total
HERR ZAREMER

212 2012 2012
-g5-—- -5-- 5=

< - < - < -

HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TER TEL TEL

Franchise operations
MEAEER

98,414 2,918 1,039,785

(667) 12200

2012 2012
—5-F “5-F
HK§'000 HK8'000
7T 7T
Reportable segment revenug fom V0% F zA 28
external customers prties 870,007 108,386
Reportable Segment resus PERvEE 11,992 18,404
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ AARAFRER
Unallocated corporate other RARLTEMNE
revenue
Profit from operations Lol
Finance costs BENK
Share of profts/losses) of jointly A FIEEIEE
contraled entites &/ (8
Profit before taxation kI
Income tax expense FERER
Profit for the year Ehiaf]
Provision for impaiment losses on BB A%
— Trade recelvables —ElEsE -
— Other receivables — Efp YA - -
Reversal of impaiment osson—~~ ERE BB E
iradle recelvables FERE 117 -
Write-off of other receivables Al EYEN - 197
Amortisation of intangble assets  EF/EEEH - -
Depreciation il 1,644 6454
Segment assets APEE
— Property, plant and —% KER
equipment B 4,608 13,992
— Intangible assets —BlEE - -
— Interests in jointly — RERESIEE
controlled entities JER - 5,089
— Other asses —EfiEE 127,869 56,706
Unallocated corporate assets RARDFEE
Total assefs AESE
Seqment liabiftes P8R (67,766 (38.497)
Unallocated corporate libiies ~ ARRAREE
Totalliabiftes BfEEE
Addtions to segment APFiEEE
non-current assets HE 763 1,126

5,856)

34,367
84)

26,520

1683 20,300

- 5,039
2919 215,33
43,108

283,782

(12697 (118,902

22510

(141412
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11 Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
locations are as follows:

The PRC
0

S

CIAL STATEMENTS %4 Bt iR R Mz mS

S LB TR )

EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

11 pEHREFE)
(b) HFER

AEBIMNBEP 2 W MBS
MEBEEZEFHZ P i & 9 10

T~
Hong Kong Total
B &

Revenue from external ~ SMEIZPE 2
customers Wz 972,621
Non-current assets *RBEE

(c) Major customers

During the year ended 31 March 2013, only one
customer (2012: one) with whom transactions
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue. Revenue from
distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products to
this customer in the PRC amounted to approximately
HK$184,791,000 (2012: HK$168,891,000).

2012
—E-CfF

HK$'000
FHET

2012 2012
—E-F —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

1,039,785

) EEEF
REBEE-_ZE—=%=A=+—H

EFE & =ZE—=—F:
—B)BPZRGEAREER KR
10% A E-RAEFBEEFSDH
HEMMMREBEMZ WL E
184,791,000 T(Z T — = F -
168,891,000787T) °
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The Group

Cost:

At 1 April 2011
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2012

At 1 April 2012

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 31)

Disposals

At 31 March 2013

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 April 2011

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2012

At 1 April 2012
Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2013

Carrying amount:

At 31 March 2013

At 31 March 2012

A

RZE——ENA-H

E
i
i

i

RZE-—FEA-H

E
i
W

K

HRE
g
&

“E-CF
ZA=t+-8H

HRE
g
BHEAT

(Hit31)
HE

R

2

RZE——ENA-A

£
%
i

i

RZE-—FEA-H

£
%
i

i

&
R

i

“E-CF

ZA=1-8
iHE
HE
RiE
EREE
—E-CF

=A=t-H

HRE
i
EHAD

“E-=F
=h=1-H

H

“3-=F
ZR=1-H

“E-CF
ZA=1-H

12 Property, plant and equipment

12 Y% - ERRE

AEE
Office and Leasehold
Furniture computer improve- Cons-
and fixtures  equipment ments Motor truction
Machinery FRR BAER g vehicles in progress Total
B EEsE ElRE ES] AE EBIR af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT A7 A7 A7 A7 87 87
18,361 4,724 7,164 26,160 9,380 - 65,789
164 76 128 909 321 - 1,598
635 211 984 1172 356 - 3,358
(849) (48) (393) - (688) - (1,978)
18,311 4,963 7,883 28,241 9,369 - 68,767
18,311 4,963 7,883 28,241 9,369 - 68,767
36 16 30 34 69 148 333
797 101 1,346 199 3,433 8,220 14,006
- 9 14 - - 345 368
(99) (30) (311) - (2,251) - (2,691)
19,045 5,089 8,962 28,474 10,620 8,713 80,873
13,275 3,550 5,388 11,415 3,711 - 37,339
104 49 79 705 130 - 1,067
1,715 439 878 4,583 1,611 - 9,226
(849) (43) (354) - (620) - (1,866)
14,245 3,995 5,991 16,703 4832 - 45,766
14,245 3,995 5,991 16,708 4,832 - 45,766
26 13 20 118 33 - 210
1,707 379 690 4,442 1,819 - 9,037
(89) (25) (278) - (1,590) - (1,982)
15,889 4,362 6,423 21,263 5,094 - 53,031
3,156 697 2,539 7,211 5,526 8,713 21,842
4,066 968 1,892 11,538 4,537 - 23,001

Annual Report 2012/13 FE %
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 E#ZREMR QA



SV)
ANCIAL STATEMENTS #:& B #5R R Kzt mS

RSN - HLABTTHIR)
=
E2=g=N

SAU SAN TONG

13 Intangible assets 13 BELEE
The Group REE
Website costs
B uh R A
HK$’000
FAET
Cost: AR
Additions and at 31 March 2013 RERR-_Z—=F=A=1+—H 9,072
Accumulated amortisation: HETEe -
Charge for the year and FREHEIN T —=%F
at 31 March 2013 =A=+—H 686
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 March 2013 RZE-—Z=F=A=+—H 8,386
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—Z—F=A=+—H —
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “general FRAZHHEERGT ARakER 2K
and administrative expenses” in the consolidated income RATHHAR] -
statement.
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14 Goodwill

Cost:

At 1 April

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 31)

At 31 March

Accumulated impairment:

At 1 April and 31 March

Carrying amount:

At 31 March

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies as set out in note 2(e).

14 BE
The Group
rEE
2012
HK$’000
FET
R
REA—H 271
PUE I E A RIS EL
(et 31) _
R=A=+—8H 271
REHREE :
RUMA—BER=ZA=+—H 21
BREE :
W=A=+—8 250

BB TR 2(e) RE 2 AR B & FTBR
N
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14 Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to three individual cash-generating units (CGUSs)
comprising five (2012: three) subsidiaries, engaging in the
following business segment:

Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care %3 # #& 1k il K 7 &
products Ef

Provision of beauty and slimming services fR{#HEZR & 482 AR 7%

Provision of management consultancy RHEEAT
services PR 75

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are:

2013 and 2012

5% — 15%
12%

— Gross margin
— Discount rate

Management determined the budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks.

NANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

S

&

SAU

14 BE %)

HREARTES BEE S oEE =@
BAR(ZZE——F : ZfE)WE A RHEK
ZERBEeELEM(REELSEMN) &
MEBARDRIMEELAT B HEE
2012
HK$’000
FET
37
140

73

250

ReELBEM I RESRIREREER
BEAERE - WEENERARRERE
Bk AFBMBREFL ZRER

B8R -

EREEMETEMAZEERERR

—E-=ER-E--F

— EFE
— BRER X

5% — 15%
12%

EEBRBBERAMNEUTISER A
HMETEEEMNE - ERZMERERS
WiAT - WRBREFEER o

sBERNE (NS

5%

SAN TONG

Annual Report 2012/13 FE %
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 65 E#ZERERAT



15

Investments in and amounts due from/to

subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost
Less: impairment losses

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Less: impairment loss

Amounts due to subsidiaries

FEEMRAD - BARA
B REEE

P& W P 8 22 R RR
R BEE1R

&A1 Y /B8 2 AR IR

The amounts due from or to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

15 RIBARZREREL, B

KB D RFRIE
The Company
N
2012

HK$’000
FET

3,664
(3,660)

184,223
(128,463)

55,760

1,797

RS BB 2 RSB A AR -
RBRERMEE -
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15

Investments in and amounts due from/to
subsidiaries (Continued)

At 31 March 2013, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a
Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares held
is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of these
subsidiaries at 31 March 2013 are set out below:

Place of  Particulars of issued

Name of company operations and paid up capital
MAER EEBE  CRORMRREEE
Incorporated in the Brtish Virgin Islands:
REBRLRGHMAL -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each
B 1,000 REREE 1 %2R
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
B 1 REREE 1 FT R
Smartime International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of USS1 each
ERERREERARD B 1RERAE 1 ZL2 R
Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
‘ﬁ@ 100 REHAE 1 ZT Kb
Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each
(3 10 REHRAE 1 T2k
Sau San Tong China Development Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US§1 each
7 10REREE 1 ZTRA
Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US§1 each
B 100 REHAE 1 ZTZRD
Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
B4 100 REHRARE 1 ZTLRH
Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of USS$1 each
Bk 10 REREE 1 FT2KR

L'institut Sau San Tong de la recherche scientifique  Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
de beauté (en France) a Limited & 100 REREE 1 ET 2R

Bravo Media Limited (*BML") (note (i) (47(i)) ~ Hong Kong 1 share of US§1 each
5 1RERAE 1 Zn kA

S

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B #3R R Miz: mS

lars unless otherwise indicated) (B BA RSN » HIAEITHIR)

EE=g=

SAU SAN TONG

15 B’\‘WE’A?ZEE&EW/E
B B A R FRIE ()

RZE—=F=—A=+—8 ' KARQREE
HEBERTIME AR (RLA LT AR
S E B AINK L, MBS - BIAH
HEBLALTRRMER EEFE)%#
B o REBFEHAIN - PR ERNR
LER - ZENBRARNR-E—=F=A
=+T—BHZFHBEWOT :

Proportion of
effective ownership interest

ERERRRRLA

Direct Indirect  Principal activities
B BE  FEER

100% - Investment holding
REBR

100% - Investment holding
REZR

100% - Investment holding
RARRK

100% - Investment holding
AR

100% - Investment holding
REER

100% - Investment holding
REBR

100% - Inactive
grex

100% - Investment holding
RESRK

100% - Inactive
grex

100% - Inactive
grex

100% - Investment holding
REBR

Annual Report 2012/13 FEHE  EHI
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15

Investments in and amounts

subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company
ARER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands: (Continued)

REGRLREINAL  (8)

Gold Platform Limited
Briliant Concept Co. Ltd.

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd.

Sau San Tong (Shanghai] Limited (note (i)
Cird))

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Hangzhou|
Limited

Sau San Tong (Shanghaj Development Ltd. (note (j)
(W)

Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments Limited

Machiko Enterprises Inc.

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Shenzhen)
Limited

Yield Soar Limited

Incorporated in the United States of America (‘USA’):

REFZATE(Z8))ZMAT -

Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific
Research Institute Limited (note (i) (422 i)

Incorporated in Hong Kong

REEZMAL -

Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited
BAEERAR

Place of
operations

EESE

ang Kong

li

Hong Kong

/

Hong Kong

li

Hong Kong

li

Hong Kong
é:

I
Hong Kong
B
ang Kong
i

Hong Kong

!

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
30

USA
e

ang Kong

li

due from/to

Proportion of
effective ownership interest

ERERERENLS
Particulars of issued
and paid up capital Direct Indirect
BRTRARREEE E# B
10 shares of US$1 each 100% -
10RERAE 1 ZT2kh
1 share of US$1 each - 100%
1 BEREE 1 F 2R
100 shares of US$1 each - 100%
100 REREE 1 ETzRH
1,000 shares of US$1 each - 50%
1000 REREE 1 FT2RH
100 shares of US$1 each - 51%
100 REREE 1 EL 2kt
10 shares of US$1 each - 50%
10REREE 1 ZT2RH
100 shares of US$1 each - 100%
100 REREE 1 TRl
100 shares of US$1 each - 100%
100 REREE 1 EL kb
100 shares of US$1 each - 51%
100 REREE 1 Ezfh
1 share of US$1 each - 100%
1REREE 1 E2kh
1 share of US$1 each 100% -
1 RERAE 1 EL kR
10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%

10,000 REREE 1 EL2%A

15 RIBARZREREL, -
3B B 2 R FRIE ()

Principal activities

IEEH

Investment holding

Investment holding

Provision of management consultancy
services

RUERHARS

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

Inactive
i

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

REAR

Investment holding

Inactive
i

Sale of health and beauty products and
investment holding

BERRRXAERRRELR
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15 Investments in and amounts due from/to 15 RHBATIZREREW B
subsidiaries (Continued) S NG E G D)
Proportion of
effective ownership interest
LU 1 b
Place of  Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER EEBE  CRORERREEE B BE  EEER

Incorporated in Hong Kong (Continued)

REEIMAL - (8)

Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Inactive
EIERRBRARAT (35 100 RBREE 1 AL Ri grex
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim - Hong Kong 18,750 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute Limited & 18,750 RERAE 1 B2 KA REZARIBRE
EIERERRRRERRET LARAR
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute (TST) Limited = 10,000 RERAE 1 £ b RUZTRERRSE
EIEREXARRURRED O (XDR)ERAT
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited ; 100 REREE 1 BT 2R REXARHERS
IS NRRABRAT L (HRE)ERAA
Sau San Tong Management Limited ang Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Provision of management consultancy
EHZERERAF j 100 REREE 1 BT 2R senvices.
RUEERARY
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 gach - 100%  Provision of advertising agency services
Bt REREERAR Bk 10,000 REKEE 1 BT 2RI RURERERE
Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each - 100%  Inactive
RARARAT 30 1RERAE 1 Bz gmex
Highlight International Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Inactive
SHEREHERAT Bk 100 REMREE 1 B2 RiA gEex
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim -~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HKS 1 each - 100%  Inactive
Institute (Shatin) Limited B 100 RBREE 1 BT R gz
BAERRXRRRARRED LV ARAT
Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HKS1 each - 100%  Investment holding
ANEBRRAR B 1 REREE 1 BT RA AR
Winner Sight Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each - 100%  Inactive
BEERLT Bk LREREE 1 BTZRA gEex
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100% - Inactive
Research Institute (HK) Limited Bh 1 REREE 1 B2k ¢
Jadepower International Limited (*Jadepower’) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
(note (i) B 1 REREE 1 B Rl REERK

ZhRARARLA (2N )
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15 Investments in and amounts due from/to 15 RMIBARZIREREW, HE
subsidiaries (Continued) L NG ERELE 2
Proportion of
effective ownership interest
ERERERRILA
Place of  Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
LAER By DRORMRRAZE E# BiE  TEER
Incorporated in Hong Kong (Continued)
REZZMAT - (8)
Beauty University Management Limited (‘BUML’) Hong Kong 100 sheres of HK$1 each - 80%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
{note i) - ) ; 100 B RA(R 1 BTkl REXA RGBS
REREERRRAT(ZEAZ) Wi m)
Incorporated in the PRC:
VlalTsirAv
FE-FEERERDA hote (i) (47 () The PRC  Registered capital of US§150,000 - 50%  Provision of beauty and slimming senvices
EF FHEA 150,000 % RUXAREERS
HARGBIEEERDAE The PRC  Registered capital of US$5,000,000 - 51%  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
EF A 5,000,000 products
PHHEHRERER
—ERRIRB(RI)ERAT The PRC  Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
hE & 3,500,000 BT REEARSERS
“EEEEEE(NNERAA The PRC  Registered capital of HK$3,500,000 - 51%  Provision of beauty and simming services
# FHHEE 3,500,000 BT REXEREERE
AREEA(LR)BRAT The PRC  Registered capital of HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
hE FHEZ 1,000,000 BT REXEREERK
IR AEERHHERAT The PRC  Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%  Inactive
HE AR ARE 500,000 T Emex
Ba2( DR RERERERLA The PRC Registered capital of RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Provision of management consultancy
H HHAR AR 6,000,000 7T senices and investment holding
REEELARE i ARR
LAEGEERERAA The PRC Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100%  Provision of franchise services
H S ERARE 500,000 7T REMEA RS
SAREEE(L)ERAAEE]) The PRC  Registered capital of US$200,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
(note (i) (#z£ () HE FHFE A 200,000 % REXAREERS
BERERHA( LB ERAT The PRC Registered capita of US100,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
(note (i) (A7 i) EF AR 100,000 FT REXAREERE
Note: Mt -
(i) As the Group controls the board of directors of these entities, they i) ARAEBREFIZEEB 2 ESE  UA
are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Group’s control REBRBEE 2 EHIEMERNBRFTA
over them. BE o
(i)  These subsidiaries were established or acquired during the year (ii) ZEMBRAAIRBE-_Z—=F=A
ended 31 March 2013. =t+—HIEFERIRKE -
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16 Interests in and amounts due from/to 16 RAREHERZERREW
jointly controlled entities SESHBEEERE 2 RE
The Group
AEE
2012
—E——HF
HK$’000
FET
Share of net liabilities EhaEFE (989)
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity & U+t [F425 4| F 52 2B 6,028
5,039
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities &<+t [F] 3% I E 42 5018 3,590
The amounts due from or to jointly controlled entities FERS SRR U LRI ) B BB F B A E I
are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of %8 NMAEETF B -
repayment.
Details of jointly controlled entities at 31 March 2013 are as RZE—=F=A=+—HZHREHE
follows: R B
Proportion of
Place of effective ownership interest
incorporation/  Particulars of issued ERERERELA
Name of jointly controlled entity ~ operations and paid up capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
AEEHERER ML/ EEnY CRIRARRAHE E# [ f IBER
Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong/ 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 50% Investment holding
FEERAA Hong Kong
EE/BAE 10,000 REREE 1 B2 K1 RERR
5S8R ALR)ERRA  The PRO/The PRC  Registered capital of US$150,000 - 50% Provision of beauty and simming services
P/ AR 150,000 £ 70 RUEARERRS
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16 Interests in and amounts due from/to
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Summary financial information on jointly controlled entities —

Group’s effective interest:

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net liabilities
Income
Expenses

Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

FREBEE
NBEE
RBERE
FRBEME

BEFS
WA

X
PSR

FrmF, (ER)

16 RAREZEHER 2EHZREW

S ENRREESEE KRB

HRZEHER — ~AREZERES Y
BERBE

The Group
TEE
2012

HK$’000
FET

1,554
6,307
(7,944)

(906)

(989)
8,748

(8,535)
(289)
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Inventories 17 78
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position FEAMBRRARANZFERE
comprise:
The Group
TEH
2012
HK$’000
FAET
Merchandise LAY om 12,795
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRERI CFESEIMNOT
expense is as follows:
The Group
TEH
2012
HK$’000
FEIT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZERAME 845,086
Write down of inventories TFEMR 98
845,184

Annual Report 2012/13 FE %
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18 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables FEE 558
Less: allowance for doubtful & - REEE S
debts (note 18(b)) (K17 18(b))
Other receivables H b e W sk I8
Deposits and prepayments & RIERRIR

Included in the Group’s deposits and prepayments were
rental, utilities and other deposits amounting to approximately
HK$12,305,000 (2012: HK$11,681,000), which are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expenses after more than
one year. All of the other trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within

one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were advances
to slimming business partners amounting to approximately
HK$26,127,000 (2012: HK$1,050,000), net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$13,493,000 (2012:
HK$13,183,000) and advances to staff of approximately

HK$2,514,000 (2012: HK$309,000).

Included in the Company’s other receivables were advances
to slimming business partners amounting to approximately

HK$12,240,000 (2012: HK$nil).

18 BEWESZREAREMEWRKE

The Group
rEE

The Company
AN

2012 2012
—E—-—F —E—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEIT FET

91,234

502)

(
90,732

6,698
25,436
122,866

FAREEz R REMRELAES A
B R E % £ 4912,305,0008 (=
T— 4 111,681,000 0) * FBEIR B
B-FrKERERBRAY - e HafE
W& 5308 Kk H A WK IETE IR —F R
W el sk iR B o

ETAAREEZ A EWSRIE B4 5
%87 2 I8 4126,127,0007% 7T
(=& — — £ :1,050,000% 7T ) (3 &
R BR B 5 4918,493,0008 m( =& — =
% :13,183,0008 7)) i RME L&
ZRIBH2,514,00008 (8 — —F ¢
309,000 7T) °

AT AR B 2 A U IR A R 4 B R 75
BT 2 FRFH 12,240,000 BT (=F
—ZF TBT) e
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continueq) 18 EWESZHRERHEMEWRFIEZ)
(@) Ageing analysis (a) HERE ST
Ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance FEWE 5 FIB(MBRRERE) N2
for doubtful debts) as of the end of the reporting period WHARZERROTAT ¢
is as follows:
The Group
AEE
2012
HK$’000
FEIT
Current BN EH 89,553
Less than 1 month past due @ EAD R 1 E A 527
1 to 2 months past due wmE1E 2@ A 504
More than 2 months but less than wmE2E 4@ A
4 months past due 148
More than 4 months but less than mEf4Z= 1218 A
12 months past due —
More than 12 months past due BRI 12 {8 A LA & —
Amounts past due wERE 8 1,179
90,732
Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days FEWE 55/ IE — M B 3 = B BReET
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s S0E90HRE - REEEFEEIEK 2
credit policy are set out in note 28(a). HE— B HA R 28(a) ©

Annual Report 2012/13 FE % 13
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 2(i)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debt
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, are as follows:

18 EWESFERHEMEWFIE#)

(b) MEWEZRERE

N E 5 50T 2 BB & 1R TY {8 R
IR BREAKEEMREZ
RIAZ AR MERIE - ERRIBERT
BB B E E R R 5 SR M
(RPBFEE2(30)3)) °

T RERE(REES KRS
R0 2 BB

The Group
rEH

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEr
At 1 April R A—H 502 610
Impairment loss recognised (note 5(c)) B R ZEIEEIE (5 5(c)) 60 9
Reversal of impairment loss (note 4) SBR[ (At 4) - (117)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 562 502

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$562,000 (2012: HK$502,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that the
chance of recovery is remote. Consequently, specific
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$562,000 (2012:
HK$502,000) was recognised.

MW_T—=%F=ZA=+—0 KEEZ
fEU Z 5 IE 4] 562,000 t(ZF—=
F : 502,000 7T ) # & B & £ & B R
1B o & AE BB BRI T BB AR 2
EFEHRE mEREETGHWE 2]
TR - FHL - RERFRRIE M 562,000 7T
—T— 4 : 502,000/87C) ERER °

o
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continueq) 18 EWESREREMEWFIE2)
(c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither (c) I fEAE R R & KR AR E S T
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is BB FEWE 55K 2 Rk H T an
as follows: T
The Group
TEH
2012
—E——HF
HK$’000
FET
Neither past due nor impaired NP 48 j60 HA J N0 SRR (E 89,653
Less than 1 month past due wE DR 18 A 527
1 to 2 months past due wHE1 = 2@ A 504
More than 2 months but less than wHEI2 E4{E A
4 months past due 148
More than 4 months but less than A4 T 1218 A
12 months past due —
More than 12 months past due BE12 1@ B A —
1,179
90,732
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired N 40 280 B N N (B 2 FE YR I Jh L%
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was WA E R otk RE AR -
no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate A B I R E 2 FEW T T B 2
to a number of independent customers that have a AREBRERTFELRZBYEFRA
good track record with the Group. Based on past B RIBBAKE AN EEEXIES
experience, management believes that no impairment REg) - BSOS AT E2EKE - i
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as EIEEBREHANXKS ST R E R

there has not been a significant change in credit quality 5 o
and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

Annual Report 2012/13 FE % 5
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19 Amounts due from/to related parties

Amounts due from non-controlling interests & Yg JE4% AR #E 25 TR 18
Amounts due from related companies (note)  FEIE E R TR

Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE T IR 15 AR fE 2 TR T

Note: Certain directors of subsidiaries have significant influence over
these related companies.

The amounts due from or to related parties are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

20 Bank loans

The bank loans are repayable within one year, and secured
by pledge of certain trade receivables balances amounting
to approximately HK$12,390,000 and properties owned
by certain staff members of the Group (2012: secured by
guarantees from a director and properties owned by certain
staff members of the Group).

19 BW EABREALTRE

KB (HTiE)

20

The Group
rEH
2012

HK$’000
FET

6,291
3,612

9,803

6,463

et - MBRARZETEREZERMERRE
BERTEN -

FEW S B RRE A LA R EEIT - 28
NBHBRER -

RITERK

RITEREAR—FANEE  WERLD
12,390,000 70 2 & TN E 5 5K IA 4
B URAEBAETEIMBEB CME
(Z2——F ERAKEETEIAM
BB ) EERR G -
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21 Trade and other payables 21 ERESZRERAMMENRE
The Group The Company
rEH PN

Trade payables FERTE 55008
Other payables and accrued - fth & (< 508 &
charges FEETE A

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with
the following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting
period:

Due within 1 month or on demand

22 Amount due to a director

The amount due to a director, Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley,

is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

AR AR E R

2012 2012
—E—-—4F —E—-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHEIT FEIT

33,628

26,305

P/ FE 58 5 50 IR I HL At 8 A5 BRIB TR A
R—FRNBEXERBRARALERE
% o

AR E 5308 R E N SRR RS
9N

BHOERNR  EREBBMRZERINN
™
The Group
rEE
2012
HK$'000
FET
33,628

22 BEN—RESME

ENESREMEL ZKAREER 2
BRBILBERERE -
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23 Convertible notes

The Company issued a 2% per annum convertible note of
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung Yuk
Shan, Shirley, a director of the Company on 5 November
2010. The maturity date of the convertible note is the second
anniversary from the date of issue. Interest is payable
annually in arrears.

The holder of the convertible note has the rights to convert,
on any business day from the date of issue of the convertible
note until 5 business days before the maturity date of the
convertible note, the whole or part only in an integral multiple
of HK$1,000,000 of the principal amount of the convertible
note into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion
price of HK$0.5. If the note has not been converted, it will be
redeemed by the Company on the maturity date.

As the convertible note was not converted, the Company
redeemed it on 5 November 2012. The proceeds on
redemption of the convertible note of HK$20,000,000 and
the interest payable of HK$400,000 were dealt with in the
Company’s current account with Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan,
Shirley. The Directors considered that the carrying amount
of the convertible note on redemption approximates the fair
value of the amount dealt with in the current account with
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

The convertible notes issued have been split as to the liability
and equity components, as follows:

23 AMREE

RRARRZZE—ZTF+—ARABEITAS
¥ 520,000,000 47T 2 G ) 2 2% A #2[%
EBRTARAESFTREMEL - AIRKRE
BHHBAETAIRRER MBTE
H - FEBTREBFFRENM -

AHRBERER B AR AR REHT
Bz RREI AR EZXE M
BRMEM & X B RBIRELBITK A
BEEASRE2HHBOERASAARE
AR (7 /1,000,000 8T 2 TREE) °
WEBEAREE R - BARRKREEAE
CES: &

RN AR REREER  RARFR
T-_F+—-HARRAEREE - BOAH&
% 5= ¥ 2 P 45 (38 20,000,000 78 7T K &
1 %12 400,000 7 7T Jh R AN A R 85k F
BEZERENRE -EFRAREM
B ATMIREERZ REERREMELE
KEANRIEZ R N TEEE -

BRI TARERD S A A ERERD
213 - BHEMT

The Group and the Company

AEBMR AT
2013 2012
—E-—=£F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#r
At 1 April MY A—H 20,168 19,142
Effective interest expense ERF &R 632 1,026
Interest paid BERFE (400) —
Redemption at maturity REIHARE D (20,400) —
Liability component at 31 March RZA=Z+—B2Za@E3n - 20,168

Annual Report 2012/13 FE %
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Convertible notes (Continued) 23
The equity component is presented as convertible notes
reserve within equity. On redemption, the convertible notes
reserve was released directly to accumulated losses. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 5.41% per
annum.
Income tax in the consolidated statement 24
of financial position
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR 1 ZE TS HR
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)) — FREE (i 6(a)
— Provisional tax paid — BTESR
Represented by: Bl
Current tax recoverable AT =) BRER R 1R
Current tax payable FEAS BNEARS 1B

S

sBERNE (NS

EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

HEREE 2
BRSO ERN T TR IR -
RO TRREERE N EERS

RitER - ABHDZERNRASEF
541% °

mERBRRRAZHMES
(@) REAMBRRRANZNEHE

The Group
rEE
2012
HK$’000
FAET
6,396

(3,720)

2,676

2,676

2,676
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Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Deferred tax — the Group

Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 April 2011

Exchange adjustments
(Credited)/charged to profit or
loss (note 6(a))

At 31 March 2012

At 1 April 2012

Exchange adjustments
Charged/(credited) to profit or
loss (note 6(a))

At 31 March 2013

UTEEMEE ZELERE :

R-ZE——FMA—H
I R R

(FtAB%), BEZMNK
(K1:£ 6(a))

RZE——F=F=+—H
N-ZE—-——FmMA—H

PE W%

BN (GTAER)
(Bt 6(a)

R-ZE—=%=A=+—H

(b) JEEHE — &AEH

() EERZELHBAEE:
AR

BE

Depreciation

24 HEMBRRRAZAEBHR @)

AT R R RR 2 EERIE
BARRENZ BEMT :

in excess of

the related Other
depreciation  temporary
allowances differences

EEHE Hith Total

BITERE HEEER =S

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FET

107 3,878 3,985

3 154 157

(59) 1,510 1,451

51 5,542 5,593

51 5,542 5,593

4) 38 34

269 (1,508) (1,234)

316 4,077 4,393
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Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

(b)

(i

(i)

(c)

Deferred tax — the Group (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 March 2013, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary differences
of approximately HK$8,433,000 (2012: HK$6,849,000).

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 March 2013, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$143,516,000 (2012:
HK$122,367,000) and deductible temporary differences
of approximately HK$2,204,000 (2012: HK$2,834,000)
as it is not probable that future taxable profits, against
which the assets can be utilised, will be available
in relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Of the total
tax losses, approximately HK$24,755,000 (2012:
HK$19,930,000) will expire within 5 years and the
remaining tax losses of approximately HK$118,761,000
(2012: HK$102,437,000) have no expiry date under the
current tax legislation.

Deferred tax — the Company
No deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in

these consolidated financial statements as the Company
does not have any significant temporary differences.

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&

BB TTEIR)

S

mBsRrE ()

S

EE=g=

SAU SAN TONG

24 HZEMBRRERAZABH &)

(b)

(i

(i)

()

EERIE - AKE(E)

AEREEHARE -
R-ZE-—=F=ZA=+—H" &KL

& 3 4 B 2 B8 49 8,433,000 7
(= ZF — =% 6,849,000 7T )
HEREERIBEEE -
RERELEHIBEE -
RZE—=F=A=+—H #HR
EHBENRBREZERRESTX
AEEBARRERB RFAIEHAHE
E MAEETERRTHRES
18 #9143,516,000/8 o(=Z & — =
F 122,367,000/ T ) & 7] 0 F
R = FE 492,204,0008 T(Z =
— Z £ : 2,834,000 JT ) #E R &
EHBEBEE - HEBEBLERES
#924,755,0008 (=T — ZF
19,930,000 % 7T ) 74 5 & M fE i -
i &k T B TE 518 49 118,761,000 7%
(= & — = F 102,437,000 7%
TRBIRATRELEERB ©

EEBE — AQF
HRARAYEERNERERE

B MUERNGEMBwETFED
EETIR B AR
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25 Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group and
the eligible employees are each required to make monthly
mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately.

At 31 March 2013, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid MPF
scheme. At 31 March 2013, the Group’s contributions to
the MPF scheme and the accrued interest thereon exceeded
the potential liabilities should the required circumstances
specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by the
relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group and
the PRC employees are required to make contributions based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the relevant
government authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

25 REMFRIKEE

REBERBEERGIERNES TSGR
IR E A EEIGO(TZIE0 ) 8E%E &
BREAZEERIABERESFEI([3
BeitEl]) - RBESHEABRBUZTA
B2 ERHEFURNGTE - RIERESET
g AEEETHBRARAREEREES
BAER G N E T EEBIE TR E
ZREBBABZ5%MTEIELHER -
BEHZEFEERER AT AEREKA
25,0008 7L (= — =4 /X AA1/4 20,000
IT) o [MIETEIVE L 2 0N B B8 AR5 A7
B TT R AR 75 5 B 55 B o

RZE-—Z=F=A=+—H x&EET
BEEZERZEIIIA T 2 RERBFH -
T AEBERNEEFR R EHESRARE
& ARBEAERETEZGIEEZ
BRATHAFLNR - MEEBANB 2
VAR BB EtE8RE - R_F—=
FZA=1T—8 AKERBRESEE
oz R S B R AR B BEL R AR AT A & R
I EZBREERIE

AEERTEZHMBAR T RETE 2R
BRE2EFEHRTORING S - ZF5 A
TEABRAKEERE ARERTEIE
BARTBEREMEZERFEKREZ
ETBEDLEREK - MAEREBT R
MAEASETENBAR 2B ABR
B&ERER ZRIRENELE
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 4 November 2003. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/
or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board as its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to
the Company issuing a circular and the approval from the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

BB TTEIR)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 3 8A4h
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EEEEROXAXRS

ARAR—_FZ=F+—ANARMK—IA
Bt BI([PE AR 8 )) - BEAAERt
HEERARAMNAER2EERTHER
o EREREEARRE R, S E MK E
RAERERSEE TR Z SRR -
BREAIZABRBREREARARFR
SHEEARBLR 2 2B ERES
TBRABSSRBE(BENIT - AT
EENBEBYFRTES) UNEFSE
URRBUARRE R,/ IZEHBR AL
R BRI ER - B - IR AR
BRZAL-

BREDERRBIBELIRTEERZ A
E o BNBRES TRAAENARE—
AR BB - BREZITERSHE

SERERE  HBRENELBERF
BAFITR - BB SIHER B
BT FRISR L BRE -

RIBRE I 8 AR RHER E B A
A BIBER R BRI TR 2 P A RETTEEE
PREEITER AR TT 2R REEE
TRBATFEEITRDZ30% -

BT RARIERE AR 8| R AR RME
MEMBREFERTAERZEAR
HERE(BRDITE - SRR
2 FERHE ) BITER Al RE BT 2 IRt 48
2 WREERH BB IIER+ @A
FEBKREAPERTRNBE Z1%
AN BIZB U 3 2 B D RIS AN A B AR
RRBRERAE L4 -
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed

26 EREEROIIRZ 2

IRAR B R ST B 2 (TS e R AR A
HRERAD 2TEE(EEITEERER
BREHREES2EAT  EZEET
BERHBEORIBEHBASM(MEREXH)
BT ARERATRZ ER R THE ¢ (i) AR
MRBEE L B AL ¥R EH A
BIRRATHRs FHRME: R)EHE
BUERERE) -

(@) RFRFEZERHGRRE G

during the year are as follows: K
Contractual
Number of life of options
instruments BREZ
IA#®H EHEH
Options granted to Directors: RYEEZERE
— on 10 September 2004 — RZEZTWFENATAH 646,248 9.2 years F
— on 2 March 2011 —RZE—F=A=H 2,000,000 5.0 years F
2,646,248
Options granted to employees: BT EE ZHERE
— on 2 March 2011 —RZE—F=HA_H 11,610,000 5.0 years
Options granted to By HER
suppliers/consultants: /B 2 BB AR
— on 22 February 2012 —RZZT—=F
—“A=-+—H 5,880,000 5.0 years
Total share options BB B 20,136,248
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26 Equity-settled share-based transactions 26 BBEEEROZARZ#)
(Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) BHREHBENMEFHITEED
share options are as follows: T~
2012
—E——4F
Weighted
average
exercise Number of
price options
niEFEH i e
1EE A
HK$
BT
Outstanding at the REFEARITEE
beginning of the year 0.9892 14,256,248
Cancelled during REFE AN
the year 0.6600 (840,000)

Granted during the year REREH 0.4970 5,880,000

Outstanding at the end  AFR KTl

of the year 0.8536 19,296,248

Exercisable at the end of RFELRAIIT{E

the year 0.8536 19,296,248

The options outstanding at 31 March 2013 had an R-E—=ZFZA=t+—BHHEHKRITEER
exercise price in the range of HK$0.4970 to HK$7.9226 BEZITEENF0.49708 T E 7.9226 78
(2012: HK$0.4970 to HK$7.9226) and a weighted TL(ZF — ZF : 0.4970/8 L £7.9226
average remaining contractual life of 3.14 years (2012: BIT)  MEESFESRE NEE A3.14F
4.14 years). (Z2—ZF 1 414F) -

Annual Report 2012/13 FE % 25
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 E#ZRER QA



26 Equity-settled share-based transactions 26 BEFEEROINRS 2

(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREAFERER
The fair value of services received in return for share e ZERESWERREZA
options granted is measured by reference to the fair TENZ2EZERFELEREZ ATE
value of share options granted. The estimate of the HE - IR HERE AT EMGE
fair value of the share options granted is measured HEHEERNEREET  c EBREZS
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life W FEE AR I 2 AR o EaE
of the share option is used as an input into this model. BRAEBIEYIRETE 2788 -

Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions: FEASIE N E LB

Date of grant

BB
10 September 2 March 22 February
2004 2011 2012
—ZTTNE —T——F —T—=F
NA+H =A-R Z—B=+=H
Fair value at measurement date R 2AHZAFE HK$0.142 7T HK$0.582 /87T HK$0.331 BT
Share price BRI BI HK$0.600 7T HK$0.660 7t HK$0.490 7T
Exercise price 7B HK$0.512 87t  HK$0.660 87T  HK$0.497 T

Expected volatility (expressed as ~ TEHIR I8 (AR E X N A

weighted average volatility used Z IEF KR EIR)

in the modeling under Black

Scholes model) 55.79% 137.59% 124.71%
Option life (expressed as weighted BRI F 43 (LA R4 EA NERA

average life used in the modeling  Z MEFHFHFR)

under Black Scholes model) 9.2 years F 5.0 years F 5.0 years F
Expected dividends FERRE 3.85% Nil £ Nil £
Risk-free interest rate BRI E 2.30% 1.83% 0.63%
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility JEEE IR TR I B e (LABE AR 2 AN
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining XY R4TFHAE)  BREAHER
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected AR ACE g 2 (E{a] AR B {EH FH%E - 78
changes to future volatility based on publicly available HAEERATREEE o T Eg ARE
information. Expected dividends are based on historical SE) AL A EGEEREASE o

dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There was no market conditions associated with the N fE B HEE IR A R 2 IR IR -
share option grants.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4 & B i8Rk MizE mS

rs unless otherwise indicated) (B ZA RSN + HABITTIIR)
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(EZ=acN

SAU SAN TONG

27 Capital, reserves and dividends 27 BEX - HERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) #EBPHRz2BH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AREEGEERS M ZFYEF
balances of each component of the Group’s Rt R NG ERRZEH X
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated A o N B E Bl 2 2B 17 PR F )
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes FRZEBEFBEHINOT ¢

in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company V/AY =7 |
Share-based ~ Convertible
Share Share payment notes Other ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Total equity
Rx  RGEE REGHEE TERTHEE  HtBE 0 ZAEE  BREE
Note HK$:000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK$:000
s FAT 7T FAT T A7 FAT 7T
At1 April 2011 H-2--£MA-A 2,483 160,072 9,337 1315 - (104,917) 68,290

Changes in equity for E-CEVRRRE:

2012
Loss and fotal EREERZAEASE

comprehensive loss for

the year - - - - - 680 (1680
Eouity-setled share-based ~ EREERATNRS

transactions - - 1,948 - - - 1,948
Cancellation of share tEhE

options - - (489) - - 489 -
At 31 March 2012 RZE-ZEZB=1-H 2,483 160,072 10,796 1,315 - (106,108) 68,558
At 1 April 2012 R=E-ZEMA-H 2,483 160,072 10,796 1,315 - (106,108) 68,558

Changes in equity for E-CEURREE:

2013
Loss and tota EREERZAEASE

comprehensive loss for

the year - - - - - (20,120) (20,120)
Cancelation of share HERE

options - - (64) - - 64 -
Redemption of convertible ~ EETHRER

notes 23 - - - (1315) - 1315 -
Issue of written put option &7 BiER kY - - - - (16,444) - (16,444)
At 31 March 2013 R-B-Z5=f=1-A 2,483 160,072 10,732 - (16,444) (124,849) 31,994
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 27 EXR - HERKRE®)

(b) Dividend by BE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a EEVTEZENEE_ZE—=F
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: —A=+t—BULtFEZERE(ZZ
HKS$NIl). ——F BT -
(c) Share capital (c) R&
2012
T
Number of
shares
f&rE B
000 HK$’000
FHE FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREEO.01 BT
HK$0.01 each 2 A 1,000,000 10,000
Ordinary shares, BER OB
issued and fully paid: mR
At 1 April and 31 March  REA—BXK
—A=+—H 248,294 2,483
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEREEABEKBNITRESIK S
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled R - WAEREMRTGIIRMD N AA R
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. Re LR —Z- FETHERMLAR
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the ARG EEZARSMNA -

Company’s residual assets.
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TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

BB TTEIR)

in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 585 »

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium, whether
for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate
amount of the value of the premiums on their shares
shall be transferred to share premium account. The
application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to shareholders
of the Company out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or the dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be in a position to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company through exchange of shares under a group
reorganisation scheme on 4 November 2003. Further
details are set out in the Company’s prospectus dated
10 November 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with accounting policy set out in
note 2(u).

S

pmaRHE A

N

EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

27 EXR - EERKRE#®)

(d)

(i)

(iii)

RBEEERED
KRG EEREE

REFSFHESRRE - LAATHW
PAZR )i (B ok B b s (B 3 1T AR A7
BEK—FRERN 2R EEER
BMEFZRBERARNEZER - B
R ®RERZFSEHEREDAR

i
= o

B

BRIFEBEEZE DRSS BHIE
ARBAAREREEBBIERER
K EERY  SATEAERD
EERPRARA BRI DR
BB e

BOEE

EHREEARRZETEARRZE
BEARNARER _-_ZE=F1+—
RAMBz SESAFTEFEEIBRK
0 P B8 A B B X R AR R B 0 )i (B
BBZER E—TFHBERAR
AR -_ZET=F+—-—A+HTEZ
B ER

EX#E

ERREREMAERESIELTZ
MBRRAMEEZIELZE -
TR P 5 2(u) FT 8L 2 & 5 R BR
# e
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to the eligible participants of
the Share Option Scheme recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(q).

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity component of the
convertible notes issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible notes in note 2().

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the Group, which
is a sino-foreign joint-venture enterprise, is required to
allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit but before
dividend distribution to the general reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered capital.
The general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital. The appropriation for the year
amounted to HK$1,795,000 (2012: HK$924,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be used
to increase capital upon approval by the relevant
authority. Appropriation to enterprise expansion fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. There was no appropriation during the year
(2012: HKS$NIl).

27 EXR - HERKRE®)

(d)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

REMEEREHNE)
RO 5E

P A0 1< R 1% 88 48 AR 1 B 5 2(a) L AR
SRR Z GET BT RER R T
BREECERSHEEZERK
BEFARITEBRERE ZAFE -

R EE

AR B R R A PR TR I e 2(1) R
EBRRN T HRRERZARF
BT 2P BEREED IR T ARITEE
mED 2 EE ©

B EER B AE

BIREE R B2 EFI RIER -
AEE—HFPBEWERB(EFIN
EEDE)VESEARMERRS
KBEBRAFZEL10%E — K H#
# EEREBEETMEAR0%
Bl —BFEHEETREBAER
B fE 18 B VE K 85 R 51 &5 18 =3 AN
BEAR o FRHEE,795000% T
(ZZT— =4 :924,000&7T) °

TEERESENRBHEERILE
BRREZENER - DEEELEER
EeHRTENBAREETEZH
BEEL - FRLESR(ZT—=
F:TERL) o
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

(vi)

(vii)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

PRC statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used
for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees.
Appropriation to the staff welfare and bonus fund is
at the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. For Hong Kong reporting purposes, this
appropriation is charged to profit or loss and included in
other payables and accrued charges in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between the
fair value of the consideration received and the carrying
amount of the net assets of BUML attributable to the
non-controlling interests and (i) the fair value of gross
liability of written put option issued by the Company
in connection with the disposal of 20% equity interest
in BUML that do not result in a loss of control by the
Group (see note 32).

Distributability of reserves
At 31 March 2013, the Company’s reserves available

for distribution to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$35,223,000 (2012: HK$53,964,000).

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&
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27 EXR - EERKRE#®)

(d)

(vi)

REMERBH(E)

B L E BB HE (E)

EI%E*'J&;&@J%%ETFHT’FEP.
MEARZEERH - EEIEI
BAEREBES HEPBEMNEA
§$’§Z@’\J\ﬁ$§f’ﬁﬁ ° E‘fﬂ%%a&#ﬁ

o BB BmNR - WA
?%é%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ%Zﬁ@Kéﬁ?ﬁﬁ&
EETERN -

(vii) EfbfEE

(e)

HibEEE () BWRERAFEHREIE
TREREEEBABEEFEE
EEZEZE RHARAGREESE
BREB2O%REMBEITRLES
(TE3|HMAEEMAREETFE) 28
BEZAFE(RKMES2) °

R 2Rt

R-FB-—ZH=A=+—0 42
BRI YR FARAIERE AZRH
1% #)3% 35,223,000 L(Z T — =
£F : 53,964,000/ 7T) °
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank loans, trade payables,
other payables and accrued charges, amount due
to a director, amounts due to jointly controlled
entities, amounts due to related parties, convertible
notes and other long-term liability, net of cash and
cash equivalents and capital, which comprises all
components of equity.

The Directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review, the
Directors consider the cost of debt and cost of capital.
Based on the recommendation of the Directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt.

27 EXR - HERKRE®)

(f)
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties
and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are usually due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
As such, management considers the aggregate risks
arising from the possibility of credit losses are limited
and to be acceptable.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(@)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had a certain concentration of credit
risk as 23% (2012: 25%) and 44% (2012: 41%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
Management does not expect any significant losses
from trade debtors that have not been provided for
other than impairment loss on bad and doubtful debt as
set out in note 18(b).

The Group’s other receivables at 31 March 2013
comprise mainly advances to business partners,
advances to staff and trade deposits amounting to
approximately HK$35,711,000 (2012: HK$5,285,000).
Should the counter parties default in settling the
payments and/or providing services, the Group may
suffer financial losses. The Directors consider that these
amounts are fully recoverable.

In respect of the amounts due from related parties at 31
March 2013 amounting to approximately HK$9,278,000
(2012: HK$9,803,000), the Group may suffer financial
losses if the related parties default in settling the
payments. However, the Directors consider that these
amounts are fully recoverable.

28 SRIEAKREERAFEE)

(a)

FERBRETRER(E)

AEEZEERBREEZINERF
ZHEBSHTE - BEFEEME
ZITERBR AR ER L E SRR
MEZE  HERER/) - REREH
K- BHREWRE SHFHIBLREF 23%
TE T 25%) R4A%(ZF
—ZF  M1%) D RIERRA S E &
AEFPRAREF  MASEBE
FEERBEFRBER - BRHE18()
ez REBRREEEIN  TEE
WATEHRBEREWE ZERE
WAEREREE -

R-ZZT—=F=ZA=+—8 " £&
E 2z EMERHIEEZRERER
BHBANZRIE - - MEBEIRFZH
BRE SiEeE£35,711,00078 T
— T — =% 5,285,000/ 70 ) °
MR SEFH BRI HRE R, 5
REERMERY - AIAEEAESRT
HBEL - EERAZEREANZ
U o
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the
majority of counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies and stated-controlled financial institutions with
good reputations.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities which
are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments, computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

(i)  The Group

Bank loans B8R

Trade payables ERESE

Other payables and accrued EfEHFERENER
charges

Amount due to  director E-2E35H

Amounts due to joitly controlled AT RFiS|EEHA
entities

Amounts due to related parfes  JEREEA LS

Convertible notes AREE

Other long-term bty ApREEE

28 SRIEAKREERAFEE)

(b)

()

RBESRERE)

TRALAEERARFR AR
REBRPRZHBTAHNINHR - T
RENAMBRReRE(BERAS
HME(WF B RN 2RPRZ
BTN ERFEZH SN RAEE
RARNRAIEAX N 2 &F B BiRE
gl o

rEH
2012
“E--E
Total Within
contractual 1 year
undiscounted oron

Carrying cash flow demand
amount #ERRE 1ERg,
FAE REANEE EEX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
AT FAT FAT

0760 (4760 (14760
BES (96 (336

26,305 (26,306) (26,309)
213 273) (273

3590 (3,590 13.590)
6,463 16.463) 16.469)
0168 0%0  (0800)

105,187 (105,819) (105,819)
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28 Financial risk management and fair values 28 sREREERATEE)

(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEKE)
(i) The Company (i) AERa
2012
“E-2F
Total Within
contractual 1 year
undiscounted oron
Carrying cash flow demand

amount AEHRS 1/,
BEE iEahEE EEX
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
AT FAT AT

Other payables and accrued AfpEftER

charges EHER 1,159 1,159) (1,159)
Amount due to a director Efi-48%38 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARZE 1,797 (1,797) (1,797)
Convertible notes TAREE 20,168 20,800) (20,800)
Other long-term fiabity AfpkEEE - - -

2,124 (28,756) (23,756)
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28 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(c)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank deposits, bank loans and convertible notes.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less interest-
bearing financial liabilities) at the end of the reporting
period.

Variable rate deposits: ¥ BIF ¢

Bank deposits and cash  $R1TERRIRTT
at bank Be

Fixed rate borrowings: TEBEMEE:

Bank loans IRITER

Convertible notes BEYEE

SRR
FTER

Variable rate borrowings:
Bank loans

Total net deposits GFRUFHRTE

28 SRIEAKREERAFEE)

(c)

(M)

MEE R

AEBzMERRERESBIRT
TR RITERRATBRBRRE - €
BREENRSCAREAZRERE
MERER N AFENERR - N&E
B3 £ AR 2 BT AR T A A K
E e AEEEEEEER M X
MAEBN () °

FEED
TREMAEERN 2 BEKTHF

BOARTERRMEERAEE)Z
MEES -

The Group
FEE
2012
—E-—F

Effective

interest

rate

ERF =
% HK$’000
FET
0.36% 67,687
7.60% (14,760)
5.41% (20,168)
N/A i@ F (34,928)
N/A N5 B —
32,759
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28 Financial risk management and fair values

EF=g

SAU SAN TONG

28 sEiEREERAFEE)

(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) F=ERM(E)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SEESH
At 31 March 20183, it is estimated that a general R_E—=F=A=+—8 " F:t
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, F &% EF 8100 & E 2 -
with all other variables held constant, would increase/ BEPTE H S g - B~
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and decrease/ BOREE ZBRBLE RN R RS
increase accumulated losses by approximately B D A4 387,000 (= F
HK$387,000 (2012: increase/decrease the Group’s —ZF MR AER R
profit after tax and decrease/increase the Group’s BRI EmAEEz REt
accumulated losses by approximately HK$508,000). E51847508,000 78 70 )  HAth#Ess 2B
Other components of equity would not be affected mETreSNEREFHFE( T ——
(2012: HK$NIl) by the changes in interest rates. F BT °
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the FABREDMIEAEBE ZBRTE
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after-tax WANE R EE IS - IR
and accumulated losses assuming that the change in BRAMEREHENERPREERE
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting ERANREZBGFEEZENTESRT
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest B 7 F =@ A ERE - 100 & & 24
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments in FABRDEBEH T —FEZ2®WAA
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or HARF R e B 233G - =
decrease represents management’s assessment of a T FIRMAREEET N
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2012.

(d) Foreign currency risk (d) R
The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk AR KEGEE - WA - BE LKA
as most sales, income, purchases and expenses are YT EBEBR g AE
denominated in the functional currency of the operations il MAEBEWEALEREER
to which they relate. Bz o

(e) Fair values ) 2~¥HE

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values at 31 March
2013 and 2012.

BT AENKEENR T —
FER-_E——F=ZA=1+—H
TEITESEAEER 7 5K -
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29 Commitments

29

(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2013 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are

as follows:

Authorised and contracted for

— capital injection into a jointly
controlled entity

— acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

BRI

— A—FHEARZEHERE
xE

— REWE - BB
Big

A

(8 RZE—=F=ZA=+—HEFEM
KRG EM B REREE 2 BN RE
mr o

The Group
rEE
2012
HK$’000
FET
6,000
856
6,856
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29 Commitments (Continued)

(b) At 31 March 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

Within 1 year 1FER
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FBEBES5FA
After 5 years 5F1&

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties,
display locations and items of equipment under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to ten years, with an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments
are usually increased every one to four years to reflect
market rental. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

CIAL STATEMENTS &4

b BB TTIIR)

S

SAU

29 EiE#)

R-B—Z4=ZA=+—8 T7
Bz MEr A sEASH
E G N

(0)

The Group
AEE

2012

T ——4F
Properties
and
display
locations
LJEI5E
BRRMLE
HK$’000
FET
18,526
30,803
9,756

59,085

AEBERKERERTETYE
RAIELZBEAEB ZFABEA - H
E-RONLR/P—E+F ARE
MEBMAGRKETEHE - e
BEG-EWFEN  ARKRTE
He - SEREREXAESE -

sBERNE (NS

EF=g
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30 Contingent liabilities

31

30 FREE

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group and the Company RZE—=FF-_FT——-F=A=+—

had no material contingent liabilities.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

B ARERARAMEENLREE -

31 WEBEHEAR

On 28 March 2013, the Company completed the acquisition RZZE—=F=ZA=+\B ' ARFIZEK
of the entire issued share capital of Jadepower, which holds URE1BTAARARTESREMET K
100% equity interest in {4 (together, the “Jadepower Group”) R H(EHEEHE100%E - 52
at a consideration of HK$1 from Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, EE N2 BITRA - RHEFETE
a director of the Company. Jadepower Group is principally WEREER N LR -

engaged in provision of beauty and slimming services.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities arising RUEEH BRI EE mELE 2 Al BRI & E &
from the acquisition as at the date of acquisition is as follows: BEAYENT :
HK$’000
FET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - HeEEREE 368
Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hofh W sk IE 10,029
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESFEY 1,428
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAth fET 518 (11,895)
(70)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WIBFTELX2HE
HK$’000
FET
Consideration transferred BEEAE -
Less: fair value of the net identifiable liabilities & - FrUt B #5 & & FE 2 A FE
acquired (70)
Goodwill arising on acquisition BB T EE A 2 TR (70)
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32

n Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 5 & 8R4

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4&

BB TTEIR)

S

mERmE ()

S

EE=g=

SAU SAN TONG

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) 31 WHEHMB AR 2
The goodwill arising on this acquisition is attributable to the WEEMEA v mERERNEE 2 BEHA
expected earnings growth of Jadepower Group, and is not Fig R - FEARA AR -
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
Cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WENBARZESRA
HK$’000
FAET
Cash consideration paid EfRENRE -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired R BB e MRS SEY (1,428)
1,428

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Jadepower Group did not contribute any turnover or profit or
loss to the Group for the year.

Had this acquisition been effected on 1 April 2012,
Jadepower Group would have contributed HK$Nil to turnover
and loss of HK$39,000 to result for the year. This pro-
forma information is for illustration purposes and should not
be viewed as an indication of the results of operations that
would have occurred if the acquisition had been completed
on 1 April 2012.

Changes of Group’s interest in a subsidiary

On 28 December 2012, the Company, BML and BUML
entered into an investment agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the independent third
party subscribed new shares in BUML, as representing
20% of the enlarged issued share capital of BUML, at
a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000. Further details
of this transaction have been set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 December 2012.

32

BEHAREXREZRE

R NEBE R EF A SN B R AT &
EEY B -

MeEBERBR-_T——FMA—BEH
BNEEENAEREHREXRBTAETLR
HAEEHEB9,000/8TT - WiEBEEREMR
FARE - TEBEFHEBEER-F
——FMOA-AERMAREE KSR
RIS -

AEBRHBLAR 2 EEEE

RZE——F=-_A=+/\H ' XQFH
BMLEEEBAZHEBIE=FF UK
B Bl BYE=FUBA&K
20,000,000 8 TR IBEEBREZH
Rin - BIEBARBLEERERITRAZ
20% ° RIER G E—FTFHHNRAERF]
A AT ——H+-_A=Z+NBzA%
A o
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32 Changes of Group’s interest in a subsidiary

(Continued)

Prior to the issue of new shares under the investment
agreement, BUML was a wholly-owned subsidiary of BML
which is wholly owned by the Company. Upon the issue
of new shares in BUML on 28 March 2013, the Group’s
effective interest in BUML was reduced from 100% to 80%.
This change in Group’s interest in BUML did not result in
a loss of control over BUML and was accounted for as an
equity transaction, whereby adjustments were made to reflect
an increase in non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$3,508,000 and an increase in other reserve of
approximately HK$16,492,000 at the date of issue of the new
shares in BUML.

Pursuant to the investment agreement, in the event that
BUML fails to procure the listing of its shares or the listing
of the shares of an entity holding the business of BUML
on an internationally recognised stock exchange with the
market capitalisation size of such listing of not less than
HK$200,000,000 on or before 28 December 2017, the
independent third party shall have the right, but not an
obligation, to request the Company to purchase all of the
shares of BUML then held by the independent third party
for HK$20,000,000 (the “Put Option Right”) within 90 days
from the receipt of the written notice by BUML from the
independent third party to communicate its intent to exercise
the Put Option Right (the “Put Option Notice Period”). If the
Company fails to purchase all of the shares of BUML then
held by the independent third party for HK$20,000,000
within the Put Option Notice Period, then BML and/or the
Company shall be obligated to take up and fulfill BUML’s
obligations in relation to the Put Option Right under the
investment agreement within 90 days from the end of the
Put Option Notice Period. The fair value of gross liability of
HK$16,444,000 of the Group and of the Company under
the Put Option Right has been accounted for as a long-
term liability in the consolidated and company statements of
financial position. The effective interest rate of the long-term
liability is 4.00% per annum.

32 AEERMBLARZESRE

(%)

BEBEFRERRHITIRGA - EBAZEA
BMLZZ2EMEB AR - MBMLAARR A
ZEREMBR - RZZE—Z=ZF=ZA=1+N\
HETEBASHRMNE  NEBRER
REZ BEEZH100% KD EB80% ° A
SENEBAEEG  ETHEHWEBH
KEEBRZIESIE  REZ AR
BRERS  WEELHFAE  RBMRE
TEBRBHRME B4 3,508,000/ 7T
2 FE PR R A 2 32 N K2 £ 16,492,000 7% 7T
Z HAb GG -

BIBEREHZ MEBARBERERT
—+tF+ZAZ T NBERSKZAIREH
BRHRBEIERAIBLHERZM ETREE
EBERBEB BB IRONBIKRR
BEXGMEM(BE LM mERET
51K 7 200,000,000 7T ) + BB =
FEHBEN(MEIEET) JERARER
EREASBREBYS - F2E@mBAN - B
BE BTG B ([R5 Btk 1) & 7
ZEM%E0B ARG AAREBAE]) LA
20,000,000 B LB EERHABILE=H
BB ZHEEBAZRN o WMARTIREE
A FR o B4 38 &N HA (A A 20,000,000 78 7T
BEERNABYS - ARBZMAEEEX
2% - AIBMLE, S ARAHBEER
Roh B A HIRREET 0 A AR E R B
ITEBRERBIRE HE 500 B &R
A B o NEBRARQRRRE AR
BT 2 BBERTFE16,444,000% T X
FaRARMBIMRARAARIERRE
B REBEZERFMNER4% -
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33 Material related party transactions and 33 ERBEALIRGRELR
balances
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (@) TEEBEAEHS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REETEEEAS S (B1EH
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s FTHEEEN TARBEEZR
Directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain highest paid BMNHEFESHBEEEN FTETERS
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: FREZFE)WMT

2012
HK$’000
FET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits %% - 28E R H b 1@ F 6,614
Contributions to defined contribution £ IR
retirement plan FT I 60
6,674
Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see note Azt AIE TRA (R M
5(b)). 5(b)) °
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33 Material related party transactions and

balances (Continued)

(b)

Other related party transactions (b)

In addition to the financing arrangements as mentioned
in notes 20 and 23 and the acquisition of subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 31, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions during the
year:

[ — % JF i an
HERM®

Sales of goods to a non-controlling
interest

KEHAEZEHERZERS
YA

Management fee income from a jointly
controlled entity

Sales of goods to a non-controlling interest were made
at similar terms as the Group grants to other customers.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
statements of financial position and in notes 15, 16, 19
and 22.

33 EABEATXREREERE)

HtBEEALRS

BB E20 R 23 Pt 2 Bh & = BE
VAR M5 31 P B8 2 W BB P B 2 A
Sh REERFRABRETATERXN
BEALRS

The Group
rEE
2012
—E——4F
HK$'000
FAET
8,696

A —BIERERHEE R IR
KEETHEME P ZIACURRIEL -

ERE AT ZEHRRTBRRLER R
fsr15 16 - 19 R 22 55 -
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant

impact on the Group’s financial position and operating

results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group

to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are

inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements

in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described

below.

(a)

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charge for the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

E CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B # iR RMizE (/3

g dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B B8 &SN + ¥ AATTIR)

SAU SAN

34 EEHEEHRHE

EERAAEESHBRBRAZE
et RABE AR E Z R R E A
BERKEATE - BHSTHRERAE
BEHAE L TEE2EBEED G RA
B - BAASESTBOR RS THE
BT o

(a) HER#EE

AEBEEBMATRREBRET
ME - BBELRREBEMEBVEEZG
AHAERFHRARTE R EIHE
B o pefhEt iR E IR
ME - BELRELEBETLEERR
AERFHZBELREL > AR
RiTEIF MR FH FEEERITE
BHRR 2 THMELEAREL -
i FJE A F R DR TR A FS
AIEEERIEMTEERR » EK
WS SRMUR C BE R SR B 2 T8
RSk IERIEEE -

S

EF=g

TONG
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, investments
in subsidiaries, interests in jointly controlled entities and
goodwill, recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less costs
to sell because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and past
collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

34 EHAFTRHE (2

(b)

AL

ERAIEERE TR  HERK
B NHEBRARZERE RARE
HERZEBERBEELZRES
BE AETEEAWREEE - [
Yo 3l & 78 /3 X B R 81 & A AR B
AEEMEZRSE - ARZEE
EZTISHmERLARERERE - 8
REAEREMGES A FERBEERAE
BrEREER  EEEL AN
Ren8MRAEERE  AHEX
BKFREERASEERBFL
EARHME - AREER YA R
RBZEMBEARESEAED
oW BEEAENAIHMKRER
EHAE REEEBREERAE
TR R TEA -

REFREEBDRIBEESETE R
A B e 20 A7 Ko AT Y[ 4 B £ 1 1 R
mREE - EFENF[HEERETP
ZEEBEHEFLCERIEHAE
TRE 2 FE -

PR EBRZIBRGEERFE
RARKRFEZEEEE -
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&&

BB TTEIR)

S

N

smaEmE (A

EF=g

SAU S

34 FEHhstRHE @)

(c)

Fr 8%

BEMSHRERYIEHREETR
P2 MIERET A RHBRANZ R
BELHIE - AEBEERFGERS
ZHBTE  UHERBEX A
AR MBRENNERENE
B AR RETBEBEAGIES)

EXEFAEETI LA MR AERE
REFHBERER - ARNZFE
RIREEE AR B RKAN
AtERARSMRBARREE 2B
ST HER - HUE IR E AP R R FERR
&N 2 7 G 1E IR R 4 I I - B
BREMEEER®m - HAlEA K
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted to employees and other eligible participants
measured by professional valuers and the directors’
estimate based on the Black Scholes model with
modification to reflect the impact of vesting periods and
exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy of
the above estimations could affect the amount of share-
based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss.

34 EHAFTRHE (2

(d)

(e)

FERHE

rEBTEHR2EFEREON - B
HMARERZHEBAREEREZ
kAT RSFEZREE -
RIFWRE - WEEZEREERS
EREMGF AR FE AAKHE
EHRFEZEE AREPRR
ARELRED HEREMHEEL
BRATRE A BRATR - Mkl
AP ERAIEF EiEm o

LSRN EN

ETREREMABRZ2EE R
Btz A A T R E XA EE
REFEREHENGE  XIFEHE
PAUA 2 BR 57 B8 3 e 1T (R A B X
BEEZZE - Dillfhat 2 BRM
AR ERBENER RN MRR
DL °
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35 Possible impact of amendments, new 3B HE-_FE—=F=HA=1+—H

standards and interpretations issued but IEEECEMERKRERZE

not yet effective for the year ended 31 R EARBREARESE

March 2013 a7

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial HERNGEUBmETIERS &8

statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments MASBERZBEEEE —T—=F=A

and new standards which are not vyet effective for the year E-l——EIJJ:ﬁJ?ﬁ'ﬁ?KE?ﬂHEAZ'X%?E\Hﬂ%

ended 31 March 2013 and which have not been adopted R AR ZAS T AR ER - BB

in the consolidated financial statements. These include the AT AR EARNEBFH2EE

following which may be relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BT3P EHER =%
BBz e HEEN

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation of items

of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
ERGTERE1HRUBEIR) @ BHHz 27 — Hih2EWERIER 2 275 —ET——F+tH—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2013
BEEVBRELENE7TRUSIIA) BT HE : #R — KR EERERARE —E-=fF—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12, Consolidated financial

statements, Joint arrangements and Disclosure of interests in other entities:

Transition guidance 1 January 2013
BERMBWEEE105 BEVHREENE 1R REBHHRESEL

EA125(BFTAR) - mEMBWmE HALTHREENEMELR e - BEES —E—=%—H—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle 1 January 2013
ERBVBMERN _BENGFEZ T ——FRH I FELE —E-=%—H—H
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
BEBMBMELRE 105 - e BWE —E—=%5—H—H
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
BBV BMELERFE 1157 - LR LHE —T—=%—H—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
BEVBREERNFE 125 - FENEMER 2 ER —ET—=F—H—H

Annual Report 2012/13 FE#H%E EIH]
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 45 Z#ZRKRERAT



35 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2013 (continued)

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HFEMBREENE 135 - QA FEAE

HKAS 19 (2011), Employee benefits
ERGFERFI19R(ZE——F) - BEERA

HKAS 27 (2011), Separate financial statements
BAGHEAFE27THR(ZT——F) - BUMBHRE

HKAS 28 (2011), Investments in associates and joint ventures

35 BE-—E—=H=A=+—H
IFECEMGEERERZE
AR FEARREURELE
4% -1¢ )

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BTIRHRR %
Fmz s AR

1 January 2013
—ET—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H

1 January 2013

BERGEERE 285 (=T ——F) RBEQRIRAEREZIRE —2—=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
BEEGHENERREFN)  BHEeHEERERBE —FE—mWE—H—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

FEMBHRELENFONR - ERMTH

The Directors have confirmed that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments and new standards is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
their adoption is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

1 January 2015
—ET-—hFE—-HA—H

EE0HER ARBEEEN G LAERIA
R EANEERERBREREE Y
& 25 AEER/EM LA BRERT
A HEA R REAASE 2K ERE
KRB RABKEATEZHETK -
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Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513GT

2nd Floor Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

British West Indies
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SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

4/F, SANDS BUILDING, 17 HANKOW ROAD, TSIMSHATSUI, KOWLOON, HONG KONG.
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